RESOLUTION 2023-011 PASSED: JANUARY 23, 2023

AUTHORIZING HUMAN SERVICES FUNDING AGREEMENTS IN THE
AMOUNT OF $200,000 WITH LOCAL SOCIAL SERVICE AGENCIES
BEGINNING JANUARY 1, 2023, THROUGH DECEMBER 31, 2023.

WHEREAS, the City of DeKalb (the “City”) is a home rule unit of local government and may
exercise any power and perform any function pertaining to its government and affairs pursuant
to Article VII, Section 8, of the lllinois Constitution of 1970; and

WHEREAS, the City’s corporate authorities find that approving human service funding
agreements with various local social services for FY2023 in a total amount not to exceed
$200,000 in the forms attached hereto and incorporated herein as Group Exhibit A (the “FY
2023 Human Services Funding Agreements”) is in the City’s best interests for the protection of
the public health, safety, and welfare; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DEKALB,
ILLINOIS:

SECTION 1: The City’s corporate authorities approve the FY2023 Human Services Funding
Agreements attached hereto and incorporated herein as Group Exhibit A in the amounts set
forth as follows:

Adventure Works of DeKalb County, Inc. $ 10,000
Barb City Manor $ 3,600
Barb Food Mart $ 16,000
Court Appointed Special Advocates (CASA) $ 5,000
Community Coordinated Child Care (4-C) $ 19,000
DeKalb County Community Gardens $ 6,500
Elder Care Services $ 11,000
Family Service Agency of DeKalb County* $ 13,000
Family Service Agency of DeKalb County** $ 20,000
Fox Valley Community Services $ 8,000
Hope Haven $ 9,000
Kishwaukee YMCA —~ Camp Power $ 14,000
Nguzo Saba Men’s Club $ 6,000
Opportunity DeKalb $ 5,000
RAMP $ 6,000
Safe Passage $ 16,000
St. Vincent de Paul $ 9,000
Voluntary Action Center $ 20,000
Youth Pride Foundation $ 2,900
Total $200,000

*Club 55
** Youth Programming
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Furthermore, the City’s corporate authorities authorize and direct the Mayor or City Manager to
execute, and the Executive Assistant to attest, the FY2023 Human Services Funding
Agreements on the City’s behalf, and for the City Manager to take all necessary actions to effect
the FY2023 Human Services Funding Agreements.

SECTION 2: This resolution and each of its terms shall be the effective legislative act of a
home rule municipality without regard to whether such resolution should (a) contain terms
contrary to the provision of current or subsequent non-preemptive state law, or (b) legislate in a
manner or regarding a matter not delegated to municipalities by state law. It is the intent of the
City’s corporate authorities that to the extent that the terms of this resolution should be
inconsistent with any non-preemptive state law, that this resolution shall supersede state law in
that regard within its jurisdiction.

SECTION 3: This resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage and
approval as provided by law.

PASSED BY THE CITY COUNCIL of the City of DeKalb, lllinois at a Regular meeting thereof
held on the 23" day of January 2023 and approved by me as Mayor on the same day. Passed
by a 7-0-1 roll call vote. Aye: Morris, Larson, Perkins, McAdams, Verbic, Faivre, Barnes. Nay:
None. Recused: Smith.

Ne
COHEN BARNES, Mayor

&
& OF ‘L\\
ey

JEST:

Ruth A. Scott, Executive Assistant






164 East Lincoln Highway
DeKalb, llinois 60115

opportunity  innovation 815.748.2000 » cityofdekaib.com

FY 2023 HUMAN SERVICES FUNDING
APPLICATION
Twelve Months Funding 1/1/23 to 12/31/23

APPLICATION MUST BE RECEIVED NO LATER THAN 5:00 P.M. ON NOVEMBER 7, 2022.
INCOMPLETE APPLICATIONS AND/OR LATE SUBMISSIONS WILL NOT BE CONSIDERED.

Adventure Works of DeKalb County, Inc
1211 Sycamore Road, DeKalb, IL 60115
Katie Watts

Katie Watts

Agency Name:

Mailing Address:

Agency Director:

Contact Person:

815-517-0825

katie@adventureworksdekalb.org

Telephone No.: Email Address:

Name of Person Responsible for Completing Quarterly Report: Kat|e Watts
815-517-0825 Email Address: @tie@adventureworksdekalb.org

Telephone No.:

See Attached

Program Description:

4623,230
17,000

Twelve Month Program Budget:

Amount of Funding Requested: $

2.7

% of Total Program Budget: %

350

Total Estimated Number of Program Participants:

Total Estimated Number of DeKalb Residents to be Served: 188

54

Estimated DeKalb Residents as % of Total Participants to be Served: %
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The following documents must accompany the application:
1. A current listing of the agency’s Board of Directors and terms.

2. The current annual operating budget for the agency and a detailed budget for the
program requesting funding.

3. A detailed narrative explaining the program to be funded, its potential impact, and
anticipated outcomes to be achieved. Be specific about the population to be served and the
benefits derived from your services. Include any descriptive materials regarding the history
and mission of the agency that would help augment the application.

4. Documentation of the agency’s 501(c)(3) status.

5. Completed W-9 Form.

6. Copy of agency’s most recent financial audit. For small agencies that do not perform an
annual audit, financial statements certified by a professional accountant can be submitted.

The City of DeKalb retains the right to request any and all additional information from the

agency it may determine necessary in making funding decisions. This may include articles
of incorporation or any other information deemed appropriate.

The undersigned hereby certifies the information contained in this application is true and
accurate to the best of their knowledge and belief.

Name of Authorized Signer: Katie Watts

Title: Executive Director

Signature:

Date: 11/3/2022

Please submit the application using one of the following methods:

Via regular mail to be received no later than 5:00 p.m. on November 7, 2022
to:

City of DeKalb
Attention: Joanne Rouse

164 East Lincoln Highway
DeKalb, Illinois 60115

Via email dated no later than 5:00 p.m. on November 7, 2022 to:
joanne.rouse@cityofdekalb.com

City of DeKalb FY2023 Human Services Funding Application Page 2 of 3






OFFICE USE ONLY:

Date Application Received: /i { ul / 2z dy
O Approved — Annual Amount Awarded $ /3 per quarter
O Denied
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HUMAN SERVICES AGREEMENT
ADVENTURE WORKS OF DEKALB COUNTY, INC.

This agreement made this ;;?;"—’L day of A&ww , D3 | between the City of
DeKalb, a municipal corporation of the State of lllindis, hereinafter referred to as the
“City” and Adventure Works of DeKalb County, Inc., hereinafter referred to as “Grantee,”
WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS the City desires that Grantee provide certain services to the citizens of
DeKalb and Grantee has the capacity to provide such services; and,

WHEREAS the Grantee acknowledges that it is the City's intention to purchase said
services for the citizens of the City of DeKalb under the following guidelines:

1.

First priority shall be given to those services which will help meet basic emergency
needs such as food, clothing, and shelter. Second priority shall be given to those
services which are preventative in nature and promote the highest degree of self-
support, self-care, and self-help. Third priority shall be given to those services
which seek to enhance the quality of life of persons whose basic needs are already
met. Priority shall also be given to services which primarily benefit low- and
moderate-income residents. The services provided by the Grantee are consistent
with these guidelines as explained on the attached Exhibit A.

Services shall address specific documented needs. The services provided by the
Grantee address the specific, documented needs as explained on the attached
Exhibit A.

Services shall also receive financial support from other community sources.
Grantee has attached hereto a copy of its budget for the period that this Agreement
covers as Exhibit B, which budget establishes that the Grantee receives at least

97 % of its funding from third party sources. A copy of Grantee’s audit or year
end financial statement from the most recent complete year of operations is
attached hereto as Exhibit C.

City funds are used only to support those services directly benefiting DeKalb
residents. The City will not subsidize the cost of services to non-residents.
Grantee has certified compliance with this requirement by signing the attached
Exhibit A.

Administrative costs for these services are to be kept to a minimum. Grantee has
identified the allocation between administrative costs and program costs as
explained on the attached Exhibit A.

These services must be coordinated with other agencies when feasible. Grantee
has outlined how services are coordinated with other agencies as explained on the
attached Exhibit A.



10.

11.

The City will not fund, but may augment, services which are the responsibility of
another public agency or funding source. Grantee has identified any areas where
the City’s funds are ‘being. utilized to augment third party responsibilities as
explained on the attached Exhibit A.

City funds are to be used primarily to match or leverage other private or public
funds. Grantee has explained how matching or leveraged funds are being sought
or obtained as explained on the attached Exhibit A.

The City’s intent is to contract for specific services and monitor their effectiveness.
Grantee has a) identified the metrics by which its performance is to be evaluated on
an annual basis; b) identified those third parties that provide any review or
evaluation of Grantee’s efforts; and c) explained its clearly defined performance
evaluation process, as explained on the attached Exhibit A.

Grantee has clearly identified and delineated where any elected or appointed
official of the City or any City employee is involved in its programming or receives
any direct or indirect benefit, any compensation, or any pecuniary benefit of any
form by virtue of Grantee’s program, or the City funding provided hereunder, as
explained on the attached Exhibit A.

Grantee has outlined the process by which funds are held by Grantee as explained
on the attached Exhibit A, and all such funds are held by the Grantee in a Grantee-
specific checking account with the financial institution identified therein (and not in
any personal checking account), unless otherwise indicated therein.

WHEREAS the parties hereto understand and agree that the Grantee is an independent
contractor and not an employee of the City; now,

In consideration of the agreements set forth and other good and valuable
considerations, the parties agree as follows:

1.

Term. The term of this agreement shall be from January 1, 2023 to December 31,
2023. The City or Grantee may terminate this Agreement at any time, upon the
provision of thirty (30) days written notice. The City may terminate this agreement
at any time based upon the occurrence of a breach of this Agreement, upon the
provision of 48 hours written notice.

Scope of Service. The Grantee shall provide services in accordance with the
service plan provided in the original application, a copy of which is attached hereto
as Exhibit A.

Hold Harmless. The Grantee hereby agrees to indemnify, defend, and hold the
City and its officers, employees, contractors, and representatives harmless from
and against any and all such costs, expenses, damages, liabilities, losses, and



claims which may arise out of, or are related to the services provided by the
Grantee under this agreement or which relate to this Agreement, or the funding
provided herein. The Grantee agrees and acknowledges that the City is not in any
way responsible for the conduct or provision of Grantee’s programs or services, and
is not responsible for the review, supervision or management of Grantee's
personnel, volunteers, participants, programming, or services.

Payment. The City agrees to pay the Grantee the sum of Ten Thousand and
No/100 Dollars ($10,000.00) for services rendered under this agreement.
Payment will be disbursed in four equal installments and will be processed
upon receipt of the Grantee’s quarterly reports, as required by this funding
agreement. In the event that this Agreement is terminated, no further payments
shall be due or payable to Grantee. In the event that the City Council determines
that the City’s financial condition does not support making a payment otherwise due
under this Agreement, the City may suspend, delay, or otherwise cancel payments
due hereunder.

Access to Financial Records. The Grantee agrees to allow the City access to
review any and all of Grantee’s financial records as may be determined appropriate
to insure the accountability of monies disbursed by the City. The Grantee also
agrees to provide the City with a copy of its operating budget and its audit or year-
end financial statement for each fiscal year or portion thereof in which the Grantee
receives funding under this (or successor) agreements.

Performance Reporting. The Grantee agrees to send the City a report following
every three months of services identifying the number of City of DeKalb citizens that
have been provided services under the terms of this Agreement. The Grantee
further agrees to send the City a copy of all documentation required to demonstrate
its performance, or which is identified as a performance-evaluation tool in Exhibit A.

Quarterly reports shall be provided to the City on or before the 10t day of the
following months:

1st Quarter — April
2" Quarter — July
3 Quarter — October
4t Quarter - January

Compliance with Laws. The Grantee expressly covenants and agrees that it shall
comply with all applicable laws, including those laws applicable to the use of public
funding to the extent that such laws are applicable to programs funded in whole or
in part by the City of DeKalb. The Grantee expressly covenants that it shall not
discriminate against any person or organization on the basis of any legally
recognized protected classification, including but not limited to race, gender,
religion, ethnic or cultural background, sexual preference, or other legally



recognized, protected classification, in the provision of its services or use of funding
provided hereunder.

8. Use of Funds. The Grantee shall only utilize funds made available under this
agreement for the provision of services consistent with this agreement and shall not
use such funding for any other purpose, nor for the construction of any real property
or improvement to real property, nor for any purpose which constitutes “Public
Works” for purposes of the lllinois Prevailing Wage Act.

9. Grantee’s Organization. Grantee is organized in the format as described in
Exhibit A. For the term of this Agreement, Grantee shall take such actions as shall
be required to maintain that form of organization. Grantee shall provide the City
with notice of the meetings of its governing board or board of directors, and the City
shall have the opportunity to attend such meetings as an ex officio member of such
governing board; the City shall also have the right to review the minutes of all such
meetings.

10. Grantee-Specific Obligations. Grantee shall comply with the listing of Grantee-
Specific Obligations attached hereto as Exhibit D.

11. Certification: Grantee hereby certifies that it shall comply with the contents of this
Agreement and the terms of its Application and certifies that the contents of this
Agreement and the Application are true, accurate, and correct. The recitals to this
Agreement are expressly incorporated herein by reference.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Grantee has caused this agreement to be signed, sealed,
and attested to by its Chairman of the Board of Directors and Executive Director, on the

day of , and said City has caused the same to be
S|gned sealed, and attested to by its Mayor and City Clerk or Executive Assistant of the
City of DeKalb as of the date first mentioned in this Agreement.

ADVENTURE WORKS OF DEKALB CITY OF DEKALB, ILLINOIS
COUNTY, INC.

Yo Jonwsns L e
Board Chairman Cohen Barnes, Mayor

ATTEST: EST:

Executive Director




Exhibit A: Funding Application



Exhibit B: Current Year’s Budget



Exhibit C: Most Recent Completed Fiscal Year’s Audit or Year-End Financial
Statement



Exhibit D: Grantee-Specific Obligations

Grantee agrees and acknowledges that it shall comply with the following obligations,
which shall be considered to be an integral component of the Agreement:

Adventure Works of DeKalb County, Inc. (Grantee) offers adventure-based
interventions tailored for school or place-based groups focused on social-emotional
learning with a goal of improving mental weliness and the prevention of mental health
challenges. Groups focus on connection, fun, exploration, movement, and adventure to
increase confidence, promote a healthy sense of self, and develop an appreciation of
the natural environment.

Adventure Works proposes to serve 350 children with their programs. Of this number,
188 recipients of services are anticipated to be residents of the City of DeKalb. Grantee
will track the total number of individuals served by the programs and will include a
separate accounting of individuals who are residents of the City of DeKalb to document
that City of DeKalb Human Services Funding is used only to support direct services to
DeKalb residents. Grantee will report revenue from other sources to document that the
agency receives funding to cover services to individuals who are not residents of the
City of DeKalb. Reports will be submitted on a Quarterly basis in order to receive
payment of grant funds.



Adventure Works

Board of Directors 2022
Name Title Term expiration
Don Billington, Chairperson
Genoa-Kingston High School 2023
Principal, Retired
Karen Simmons Member 2023

Director of Student Services Genoa-Kingston CUSD 424

Bakarr Bah Member 2024
President, MoreWithUs.com
Cindy Luxton Treasurer 2023
Retired
Mary Gentile Vice-Chair 2022

Department of Social Work
Sycamore School District 427

Jane Dargatz Secretary 2023
Retired Educator

Christi Castenson member 2025
Retired
Patrick McMillion Member 2025

Professor at Westminster College, Higher Education,
Counseling







Adventure Works of DeKalb County
Statement of Activities Approved Budget
For the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2023

Revenue

Government Grants

City of DeKalb Human Services 10,000

DeKalb County Forest Preserve 10,000

DeKalb Township Grant 11,500

DeKalb County MHB {Grant) 5,000
Total Government Grants 36,500

Foundation & Corporate Grants

100+ Women 13,000
M 5,000
Alfred Bersted 12,000
Custom Cares Foundation 2,500
Cy Miller Foundation 2,000
DeKalb Co. Community Foundation 10,000
FMW Bank - CRA 5,000
George & Betty Dutton Foundation 7,500
Ideal Industries Grant 10,000
IL Counseling Association 3,000
J6 Foundation 3,000
Kate Svitek Memorial Foundation 3,000
Kishwaukee Sunrise Rotary 2,500
NW Medicine Kishwaukee Hospital 5,000
Schultz Foundation 6,000
United Way - Kishwaukee 2,000
United Way - Genoa Kingston 1,500
Other Grant Opportunities 12,000

Total Foundation & Corporate Grants 105,000

Fee for Service

Therapy - Ins/Client pmts 282,200
Therapy - MHB pmts 100,000
Other Program Income/School Services 26,000
DeKalb County ROE 18,000
NIU Contract 31,760
Total Fee for Service 457,960
Other
Private Donations 15,000
Fundraising Events 25,000
Business P-ships/Corp Team Building 1,000
Total Other 41,000
Total Revenue 640,460

APPROVED by AW Board of Directors
May 18, 2022 Pagel






Adventure Works of DeKalb County
Statement of Activities Approved Budget
For the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2023

Expenses
Personnel
Payroll - Salary 424,679
Payroll Taxes 33,522
QSEHRA Healthcare 33,600
SIMPLE (retirement) 9,414
PTO Expense 4,000
Personnel 505,215
Program Support
Contract, Other Consulting 500
Contractual-Grant Writing 7,000
Credentialing 1,080
Equipment & Supplies Program 4,400
Nutrition 1,200
Outcomes & Client Tracking 4,640
Total Program Support 18,820

Administration

Advertising & Marketing 6,000
Bank/CC Fees 6,000
Contract, Accounting & Legal 20,600
Equipment & Supplies, Operations 600
Fundraising Expenses 2,000
Insurance: Directors and Officers 1,100
Insurance: Liability & Cyber 9,200
Insurance: Workers Comp 6,300
Interest (SBA) 3,600
Memberships & Dues 4,035
Miscellaneous Expense 600
Office Supplies & Expenses 4,260
Professional Development 6,500
Repair & Maintenance (vehicle) 1,200
Telephone 2,600
Travel Expense 1,200
Total Administration 75,795
Occupancy
Property Demolition/Cap Improve 2,000
Internet 2,000
Mortgage Interest 9,000
Property Tax Expense 5,000
Repair & Maintenance-ocupancy 2,400
Utilities 3,000
Total Occupancy 23,400

APPROVED by AW Board of Directors
May 18, 2022 Page2






Adventure Works of DeKalb County
Statement of Activities Approved Budget
For the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2023

Total Expenses

623,230

Net Operating Income Before Depreciation

Depreciation

17,230

6,000

Net Operating Income

11,230

APPROVED by AW Board of Directors

May 18, 2022

Page3
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11/15/2022

Jennifer Yochem
164 E. Lincoln Highway
DeKalb, IL 60115

RE: Adventure Group programming budget

Dear Jennifer Yochem,

Thank you for asking me to submit this specific program budget to be considered for the City of
DeKalb Human Service Funding grant. The budget for group programming expenses is on page
two. Our biggest focus on prevention is in providing adventure therapy groups that youth can
access whether they have a mental health diagnosis or not. Adventure Works offers
group-based programs to elementary, middle school and high school aged youth.

Program activities and outcomes are tailored for each age group, with the goal of building
outdoor skills; participating in fun, physical activities and challenges; and developing healthy
relationships and social skilis. Programs weave in tenets of social emotional learning, with an
emphasis on building self-confidence, developing social skills, increasing emotional awareness
and regulation, and building distress tolerance. Additionally, programming engages parents and
caregivers through family days and parent coaching opportunities to better support their children
at home.

Sincerely,

Yok W

Katie Watts
Executive Director



This table demonstrates the cost of one 12 week session for an adventure therapy group at
Adventure Works. The DeKalb Human Service Funding grant, if received, would fund the costs
for 10 of these group sessions. This cost analysis is with one paid staff member and one unpaid
intern. There are times that we have two paid staff members when an intern is not available,
and our costs are even higher than $1706 for a 12 week adventure therapy group session.

Adventure Therapy Group Expenses

Expenses for 1 group session-12 weeks long

Group

Session

Hours-12 Before, After,
Adventure Works Expenses Hourly Rate Weeks Admin Hours Total Cost
Group Lead (520 Sal + $2 ben) 22.00 24.00 12.00 792.00
Intern - 2.00
Parent Support 25.00 2.00 - 50.00
Administration
Reg, TA, Phone, Ongoing 15.00 B 6.00 90.00
Leadership, Bus Ops, Training 34.00 6.00 204.00
Occupancy based on
$3,000/month
(.25/day/session * 12
sessions) 450.00
Nutrition (per 12 week
session) 60.00
Program Supplies (per 12
week session) 60.00

Total Direct Costs
Per 12 Week
Session

1,706.00




Adventure Works of DeKalb County
Program Narrative for City of DeKalb Human Services

Adventure Works recently completed its 2022-2027 Strategic Plan. Through this planning process,
Adventure Works updated its mission statement to reflect its most current work. its new mission
statement is, “Transforming lives through adventure therapy and experiential learning.” Adventure
Works is committed to ensuring local youth continue to have access to therapeutic services to help
them navigate life’s challenges. During the strategic planning process, it established 4 Strategic Issues to
help guide the organization and ensure continued stability and community relevance. The strategic
issues include: financial stability; staff recruitment and development; diversity, equity and inclusion; and
governance of board and staff.

Adventure Works offers expressive, experiential outdoor behavioral healthcare services, prevention
programs, and outdoor education to all children regardless of their ability to pay. Adventure Works
utilizes outdoor behavioral healthcare programming as an effective alternative to traditional counseling
to help youth develop social skills, reduce behavioral problems (such as delinquent behavior, substance
abuse, and interpersonal problems), overcome psychological problems, and experience psychological
resilience. Through holistic programming, Adventure Works teaches youth life skills necessary to
become self-sufficient, confident and mentally healthy adults.

Adventure Works seeks to provide all youth with access to quality mental health care and positive youth
development programming. it increases programming to youth and families in the region and as the
only outdoor behavioral healthcare program in the area, it reduces barriers to treatment. Last year, the
American Academy of Pediatrics, American Academy of Child and Adolescent Psychiatry and Children’s
Hospital Association declared a national emergency in child and adolescent mental health. Health
professionals have witnessed soaring rates of mental health challenges over the course of the COVID-19
pandemic. This continues to be the case in 2022 and moving into 2023.

Adventure Works supports youth in DeKalb County, Illinois and the surrounding area. Programs are
focused on youth from ages 4 through 18 years old, with over half ranging in ages from 5-12 years old.
Adventure Works focuses on underserved populations, with no discrimination for race or gender, who
would otherwise not have access to the type of experiences it provides.

As always, Adventure Works is committed to providing adventure-based interventions to individual
youth and their families to treat or address challenges related to mental health. Adventure Works’
programming relies on adventure therapy, which is defined as any engaging activity that helps clients
explore their unknown to create insightful and remarkable experiences. Adventure Works believes that
adventure therapy is best experienced outdoors within the context of a therapeutic relationship.
Additionally, Adventure Works also provides traditional therapy as clients’ needs dictate. One of the
tenets of adventure therapy is “challenge by choice,” which means the client’s wishes are honored
during therapy.

Transforming lives through adventure therapy and experiential learning.
1211 Sycamore Road, DeKalb, lilinois 60115 www.adventureworksdekalb.org







Youth are often referred to Adventure Works in situations where traditional counseling methods have
been unsuccessful. Adventure Works’ therapy programs operate on a rolling basis, and new clients are
accepted at any time. Upon engagement with Adventure Works, a therapist conducts an intake with the
client to identify individualized treatment goals. Once goals are established, the client and therapist
participate in outdoor behavioral healthcare sessions once a week for approximately 45 minutes.
Collaboratively, the client and therapist identify activities that will allow the client to develop trust, take
risks, open up and accept support. The length of the treatment varies by client and their individualized
treatment goals and can range from six months to a couple years.

Adventure Works also offers adventure-based prevention services tailored for school, place-based
groups, or age-based groups focused on social-emotional learning with a goal of improving mental
wellness and prevention of mental health challenges. Adventure Works offers group-based programs to
elementary, middle school, and high school aged youth. Groups focus on connection, fun, exploration,
movement and adventure to increase confidence, promote a healthy sense of self, and develop an
appreciation for the natural environment. Program activities and outcomes are tailored for each age
group, with the goal of building outdoor skills; participating in fun, physical activities and challenges; and
developing healthy relationships and social skills. Programs weave in tenets of social emotional learning,
with an emphasis on building self-confidence, developing social skills, increasing emotional awareness
and regulation, and building distress tolerance. Additionally, programming engages parents and
caregivers through family days and parent coaching opportunities to better support their children at
home.

Additionally, Adventure Works is expanding its work to include a focus on the family system as a whole
in therapeutic interventions. When the whole family is engaged and supported, everyone in the family
can experience healthy change. Parents are empowered to provide consistent techniques and
communication to foster and sustain new behaviors.

Finally, Adventure Works is part of a newly established Mental Health Coalition with the DeKalb County
Regional Office of Education, Family Service Agency and Youth Service Bureau. The purpose of this
coalition is to mutually advocate for equitable access and increased capacity and quality of mental
health services for children and youth. This partnership is supported by the DeKalb County Community
Mental Health Board and the lllinois State Board of Education to meet the increasing need for mental
health services in the community. The first step in this partnership was to attend a train the trainer
workshop in the 40 Developmental Assets for positive youth development compiled by the Search
Institute. Adventure Works intends to continue the work that was started several years ago to saturate
the community with common language and ways for everyone in the community to be asset builders for
youth, The mental health coalition plans to train agency staff, school staff, community members and
build a grassroots effort to support positive youth development in the DeKalb community. Additionally,
the Mental Health coalition aims to reduce redundancy, focus on each agency's strengths and
collaborate on ways to minimize the mental health concerns of youth and families.






INTERNAL REVENUE SERVICE DEPARTMENT OF THE TREASURY
P. O. BOX 2508
CINCINNATI, OH 45201

Employer Identification Number:

pate- JUN () 6 2011 27-1897885

DLN:
17053123339031
ADVENTURE WORKS OF DEKALB COUNTY Contact Pexrson:
INC NANCY L HEAGNEY ID# 31306
14 HEALTH SERVICES DRIVE Contact Telephone Number:
DEKALB, IL 60115 (877) 829-5500
Accounting Period Ending:
June 30

Public Charity Status:
170 (b) (1) (A) (vi)
Form 990 Required:
Yes
Effective Date of Exemption:
October 28, 2010
Contribution Deductibility:
Yes
Addendum Applies:
No

Dear Applicant:

We are pleased to inform you that upon review of your application for tax
exempt status we have determined that you are exempt from Federal income tax
under section 501(c) {3) of the Internal Revenue Code. Contributions to you are
deductible under section 170 of the Code. You are also qualified to receive
tax deductible bequests, devises, transfers or gifts under section 2055, 2106
or 2522 of the Code. Because this letter could help resolve any questions
regarding your exempt status, you should keep it in your permanent records.

Organizations exempt under section 501(c) (3) of the Code are further classified
as either public charities or private foundaticns. We determined that you are
a public charity under the Code section(s) listed in the heading of this
letter.

Please see enclosed Publication 4221-PC, Compliance Guide for 501{c) (3) Public
Charities, for some helpful information about your responsibilities as an
exempt organization.

Sincerely,

IR

Lois G. Lerner
Director, Exempt Organizations

Enclosure: Publication 4221-pC

Letter 947 (DO/CG)






Request for Taxpayer
Identification Number and Certification
Department of the Treasury

Internal Revenue Service » Go to www.irs.gov/FormW9 for instructions and the latest information.
1 Name (as shown on your income tax return). Name is required on this line; do not leave this line blank.

Adventure Works of DeKalb County, Inc.

2 Business name/disregarded entity name, if different from above

Adventure Works

3 Check appropriate box for federal tax classification of the person whose name is entered on line 1. Check only one of the | 4 Exemptions (codes apply only to
following seven boxes. certain entities, not individuals; see
instructions on page 3):

==
Form w 9

(Rev. October 2018)

Give Form to the
requester. Do not
send to the IRS.

[ individua/sole proprietor or C Corporation Os Corporation [l Partnership [ Trustrestate

single-member LLC Exempt payee code (if any)

|:] Limited liability company. Enter the tax classification (C=C corporation, S=S corporation, P=Partnership) »

Note: Check the appropriate box in the line above for the tax classification of the single-member owner. Do not check | Exemption from FATCA reporting
LLC if the LLC is classified as a single-member LLC that is disregarded from the owner unless the owner of the LLC is

another LLC that is not disregarded from the owner for U.S. federal tax purposes. Otherwise, a single-member LLC that sodel(ifiany)

Print or type.

D Other (see instructions) »

is disregarded from the owner should check the appropriate box for the tax classification of its owner.

{Applies to accounts maintained outside the U.S.)

5 Address (number, street, and apt. or suite no.) See instructions.

1211 Sycamore Road

Requester's name and address (optional)

See Specific Instructions on page 3.

6 City, state, and ZIP code
DeKalb, IL 60115

7 List account number(s) here (optional)

Taxpayer Identification Number (TIN)

Enter your TIN in the appropriate box. The TIN provided must match the name given on line 1 to avoid
backup withholding. For individuals, this is generally your social security number (SSN). However, for a
resident alien, sole proprietor, or disregarded entity, see the instructions for Part |, later. For other - -
entities, it is your employer identification number (EIN). If you do not have a number, see How to get a

TIN, later.

Note: If the account is in more than one name, see the instructions for line 1. Also see What Name and

Number To Give the Requester for guidelines on whose number to enter.

Social security number

or
[ Employer identification number |

2 7 1 8 97 8 835

Part Il Certification

Under penalties of perjury, | certify that:

1. The number shown on this form is my correct taxpayer identification number (or | am waiting for a number to be issued to me); and
2. | am not subject to backup withholding because: (a) | am exempt from backup withholding, or (b) | have not been notified by the Internal Revenue
Service (IRS) that | am subject to backup withholding as a result of a failure to report all interest or dividends, or (c) the IRS has notified me that | am

no longer subject to backup withholding; and
3. lam a U.S. citizen or other U.S. person (defined below); and

4. The FATCA code(s) entered on this form (if any) indicating that | am exempt from FATCA reporting is correct.

Certification instructions. You must cross out item 2 above if you have been notified by the IRS that you are currently subject to backup withholding because
you have failed to report all interest and dividends on your tax return. For real estate transactions, item 2 does not apply. For mortgage interest paid,
acquisition or abandonment of secured property, cancellation of debt, contributions to an individual retirement arrangement (IRA), and generally, payments
other than interest and dividends, you are not required to sign the certification, but you must provide your correct TIN. See the instructions for Part I, later.

Sign Signature of

Here | us persond /< A= Wietrs

10/ 38/ 2022
Date >

General Instructions

Section references are to the Internal Revenue Code unless otherwise
noted.

Future developments. For the latest information about developments
related to Form W-9 and its instructions, such as legislation enacted
after they were published, go to www.irs.gov/FormWQ.

Purpose of Form

An individual or entity (Form W-9 requester) who is required to file an
information return with the IRS must obtain your correct taxpayer
identification number (TIN) which may be your social security number
(SSN), individual taxpayer identification number (ITIN), adoption
taxpayer identification number (ATIN), or employer identification number
(EIN), to report on an information return the amount paid to you, or other
amount reportable on an information return. Examples of information
returns include, but are not limited to, the following.

* Form 1099-INT (interest earned or paid)

* Form 1099-DIV (dividends, including those from stocks or mutual
funds)

* Form 1099-MISC (various types of income, prizes, awards, or gross
proceeds)

* Form 1099-B (stock or mutual fund sales and certain other
transactions by brokers)

* Form 1099-8 (proceeds from real estate transactions)

* Form 1099-K (merchant card and third party network transactions)
¢ Form 1098 (home mortgage interest), 1098-E (student loan interest),
1098-T (tuition)

® Form 1099-C (canceled debt)

* Form 1089-A (acquisition or abandonment of secured property)

Use Form W-9 only if you are a U.S. person (including a resident
alien), to provide your correct TIN.

If you do not return Form W-9 to the requester with a TIN, you might
be subject to backup withholding. See What is backup withholding,
later.

Cat. No. 10231X
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By signing the filled-out form, you:

1. Certify that the TIN you are giving is correct (or you are waiting for a
number to be issued),

2. Certify that you are not subject to backup withholding, or

3. Claim exemption from backup withholding if you are a U.S. exempt
payee. If applicable, you are also certifying that as a U.S. person, your
allocable share of any partnership income from a U.S. trade or business
is not subject to the withholding tax on foreign partners’ share of
effectively connected income, and

4. Certify that FATCA code(s) entered on this form (if any) indicating
that you are exempt from the FATCA reporting, is correct. See What is
FATCA reporting, later, for further information.

Note: If you are a U.S. person and a requester gives you a form other
than Form W-9 to request your TIN, you must use the requester’s form if
it is substantially similar to this Form W-9.

Definition of a U.S. person. For federal tax purposes, you are
considered a U.S. person if you are:

e An individual who is a U.S. citizen or U.S. resident alien;

® A partnership, corporation, company, or association created or
organized in the United States or under the laws of the United States;

* An estate (other than a foreign estate); or
¢ A domestic trust (as defined in Regulations section 301.7701-7).

Special rules for partnerships. Partnerships that conduct a trade or
business in the United States are generally required to pay a withholding
tax under section 1446 on any foreign partners’ share of effectively
connected taxable income from such business. Further, in certain cases
where a Form W-9 has not been received, the rules under section 1446
require a partnership to presume that a partner is a foreign person, and
pay the section 1446 withholding tax. Therefore, if you are a U.S. person
that is a partner in a partnership conducting a trade or business in the
United States, provide Form W-9 to the partnership to establish your
U.S. status and avoid section 1446 withholding on your share of
partnership income.

In the cases below, the following person must give Form W-9 to the
partnership for purposes of establishing its U.S. status and avoiding
withholding on its allocable share of net income from the partnership
conducting a trade or business in the United States.

¢ In the case of a disregarded entity with a U.S. owner, the U.S. owner
of the disregarded entity and not the entity;

* In the case of a grantor trust with a U.S. grantor or other U.S. owner,
generally, the U.S. grantor or other U.S. owner of the grantor trust and
not the trust; and

* In the case of a U.S. trust (other than a grantor trust), the U.S. trust
(other than a grantor trust) and not the beneficiaries of the trust.

Foreign person. If you are a foreign person or the U.S. branch of a
foreign bank that has elected to be treated as a U.S. person, do not use
Form W-9. Instead, use the appropriate Form W-8 or Form 8233 (see
Pub. 515, Withholding of Tax on Nonresident Aliens and Foreign
Entities).

Nonresident alien who becomes a resident alien. Generally, only a
nonresident alien individual may use the terms of a tax treaty to reduce
or eliminate U.S. tax on certain types of income. However, most tax
treaties contain a provision known as a “saving clause.” Exceptions
specified in the saving clause may permit an exemption from tax to
continue for certain types of income even after the payee has otherwise
become a U.S. resident alien for tax purposes.

If you are a U.S. resident alien who is relying on an exception
contained in the saving clause of a tax treaty to claim an exemption
from U.S. tax on certain types of income, you must attach a statement
to Form W-9 that specifies the following five items.

1. The treaty country. Generally, this must be the same treaty under
which you claimed exemption from tax as a nonresident alien.

2. The treaty article addressing the income.

3. The article number (or location) in the tax treaty that contains the
saving clause and its exceptions.

4. The type and amount of income that qualifies for the exemption
from tax.

5. Sufficient facts to justify the exemption from tax under the terms of
the treaty article.

Example. Article 20 of the U.S.-China income tax treaty allows an
exemption from tax for scholarship income received by a Chinese
student temporarily present in the United States. Under U.S. law, this
student will become a resident alien for tax purposes if his or her stay in
the United States exceeds 5 calendar years. However, paragraph 2 of
the first Protocol to the U.S.-China treaty (dated April 30, 1984) allows
the provisions of Article 20 to continue to apply even after the Chinese
student becomes a resident alien of the United States. A Chinese
student who qualifies for this exception (under paragraph 2 of the first
protocol) and is relying on this exception to claim an exemption from tax
on his or her scholarship or fellowship income would attach to Form
W-9 a statement that includes the information described above to
support that exemption.

If you are a nonresident alien or a foreign entity, give the requester the
appropriate completed Form W-8 or Form 8233.

Backup Withholding

What is backup withholding? Persons making certain payments to you
must under certain conditions withhold and pay to the IRS 24% of such
payments. This is called “backup withholding.” Payments that may be
subject to backup withholding include interest, tax-exempt interest,
dividends, broker and barter exchange transactions, rents, royalties,
nonemployee pay, payments made in settlement of payment card and
third party network transactions, and certain payments from fishing boat
operators. Real estate transactions are not subject to backup
withholding.

You will not be subject to backup withholding on payments you
receive if you give the requester your correct TIN, make the proper
certifications, and report all your taxable interest and dividends on your
tax return.

Payments you receive will be subject to backup withholding if:
1. You do not furnish your TIN to the requester,

2. You do not certify your TIN when required (see the instructions for
Part 1l for details),

3. The IRS tells the requester that you furnished an incorrect TIN,

4. The IRS tells you that you are subject to backup withholding
because you did not report all your interest and dividends on your tax
return (for reportable interest and dividends only), or

5. You do not certify to the requester that you are not subject to
backup withholding under 4 above (for reportable interest and dividend
accounts opened after 1983 only).

Certain payees and payments are exempt from backup withholding.
See Exempt payee code, later, and the separate Instructions for the
Requester of Form W-9 for more information.

Also see Special rules for partnerships, earlier.

What is FATCA Reporting?

The Foreign Account Tax Compliance Act (FATCA) requires a
participating foreign financial institution to report all United States
account holders that are specified United States persons. Certain
payees are exempt from FATCA reporting. See Exemption from FATCA
reporting code, later, and the Instructions for the Requester of Form
W-9 for more information.

Updating Your Information

You must provide updated information to any person to whom you
claimed to be an exempt payee if you are no longer an exempt payee
and anticipate receiving reportable payments in the future from this
person. For example, you may need to provide updated information if
you are a C corporation that elects to be an S corporation, or if you no
longer are tax exempt. In addition, you must furnish a new Form W-9 if
the name or TIN changes for the account; for example, if the grantor of a
grantor trust dies.

Penalties

Failure to furnish TIN. If you fail to furnish your correct TIN to a
requester, you are subject to a penalty of $50 for each such failure
unless your failure is due to reasonable cause and not to willful neglect.

Civil penalty for false information with respect to withholding. If you
make a false statement with no reasonable basis that results in no
backup withholding, you are subject to a $500 penalty.
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Criminal penalty for falsifying information. Willfully falsifying
certifications or affirmations may subject you to criminal penalties
including fines and/or imprisonment.

Misuse of TINs. If the requester discloses or uses TINs in violation of
federal law, the requester may be subject to civil and criminal penalties.

Specific Instructions

Line 1

You must enter one of the following on this line; do not leave this line
blank. The name should match the name on your tax return.

If this Form W-9 is for a joint account (other than an account
maintained by a foreign financial institution (FFI)), list first, and then
circle, the name of the person or entity whose number you entered in
Part | of Form W-9. If you are providing Form W-9 to an FFI to document
a joint account, each holder of the account that is a U.S. person must
provide a Form W-9.

a. Individual. Generally, enter the name shown on your tax return. If
you have changed your last name without informing the Social Security
Administration (SSA) of the name change, enter your first name, the last
name as shown on your social security card, and your new last name.

Note: ITIN applicant: Enter your individual name as it was entered on
your Form W-7 application, line 1a. This should also be the same as the
name you entered on the Form 1040/1040A/1040EZ you filed with your
application.

b. Sole proprietor or single-member LLC. Enter your individual
name as shown on your 1040/1040A/1040EZ on line 1. You may enter
your business, trade, or “doing business as” (DBA) name on line 2.

c. Partnership, LLC that is not a single-member LLC, C
corporation, or S corporation. Enter the entity's name as shown on the
entity’s tax return on line 1 and any business, trade, or DBA name on
line 2.

d. Other entities. Enter your name as shown on required U.S. federal
tax documents on line 1. This name should match the name shown on the
charter or other legal document creating the entity. You may enter any
business, trade, or DBA name on line 2.

e. Disregarded entity. For U.S. federal tax purposes, an entity that is
disregarded as an entity separate from its owner is treated as a
“disregarded entity.” See Regulations section 301.7701-2(c)(2)(jii). Enter
the owner's name on line 1. The name of the entity entered on line 1
should never be a disregarded entity. The name on line 1 should be the
name shown on the income tax return on which the income should be
reported. For example, if a foreign LLC that is treated as a disregarded
entity for U.S. federal tax purposes has a single owner that is a U.S.
person, the U.S. owner's name is required to be provided on line 1. If
the direct owner of the entity is also a disregarded entity, enter the first
owner that is not disregarded for federal tax purposes. Enter the
disregarded entity's name on line 2, “Business name/disregarded entity
name.” If the owner of the disregarded entity is a foreign person, the
owner must complete an appropriate Form W-8 instead of a Form W-9.
This is the case even if the foreign person has a U.S. TIN.

Line 2

If you have a business name, trade name, DBA name, or disregarded
entity name, you may enter it on line 2.

Line 3

Check the appropriate box on line 3 for the U.S. federal tax
classification of the person whose name is entered on line 1. Check only
one box on line 3.

IF the entity/person on line 1 is | THEN check the box for. ..

an)...

¢ Corporation Corporation

¢ [ndividual

¢ Sole proprietorship, or

¢ Single-member limited liability
company (LLC) owned by an
individual and disregarded for U.S.
federal tax purposes.

Individual/sole proprietor or single-
member LLC

¢ LLC treated as a partnership for | Limited liability company and enter
U.S. federal tax purposes, the appropriate tax classification.

e LLC that has filed Form 8832 or | (P= Partnership; C= C corporation;
2553 to be taxed as a corporation, | or S= S corporation)

or

o L LC that is disregarded as an
entity separate from its owner but
the owner is another LLC that is
not disregarded for U.S. federal tax

purposes.
¢ Partnership Partnership
¢ Trust/estate Trust/estate

Line 4, Exemptions

If you are exempt from backup withholding and/or FATCA reporting,
enter in the appropriate space on line 4 any code(s) that may apply to
you.

Exempt payee code.

¢ Generally, individuals (including sole proprietors) are not exempt from
backup withholding.

* Except as provided below, corporations are exempt from backup
withholding for certain payments, including interest and dividends.

¢ Corporations are not exempt from backup withholding for payments
made in settlement of payment card or third party network transactions.

¢ Corporations are not exempt from backup withholding with respect to
attorneys’ fees or gross proceeds paid to attorneys, and corporations
that provide medical or health care services are not exempt with respect
to payments reportable on Form 1099-MISC.

The following codes identify payees that are exempt from backup
withholding. Enter the appropriate code in the space in line 4.

1—An organization exempt from tax under section 501(a), any IRA, or
a custodial account under section 403(b)(7) if the account satisfies the
requirements of section 401(f)(2)

2—The United States or any of its agencies or instrumentalities

3—A state, the District of Columbia, a U.S. commonwealth or
possession, or any of their political subdivisions or instrumentalities

4—A foreign government or any of its political subdivisions, agencies,
or instrumentalities

5—A corporation

6—A dealer in securities or commodities required to register in the
United States, the District of Columbia, or a U.S. commonwealth or
possession

7 —A futures commission merchant registered with the Commaodity
Futures Trading Commission

8—A real estate investment trust

9—An entity registered at all times during the tax year under the
Investment Company Act of 1940

10—A common trust fund operated by a bank under section 584(a)
11— A financial institution

12—A middieman known in the investment community as a nominee or
custodian

13—A trust exempt from tax under section 664 or described in section
4947
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The following chart shows types of payments that may be exempt
from backup withholding. The chart applies to the exempt payees listed
above, 1 through 13.

IF the payment is for. .. THEN the payment is exempt

for...

Interest and dividend payments All exempt payees except

for7

Broker transactions Exempt payees 1 through 4 and 6
through 11 and all C corporations.
S corporations must not enter an
exempt payee code because they
are exempt only for sales of
noncovered securities acquired

prior to 2012.

Barter exchange transactions and
patronage dividends

Exempt payees 1 through 4

Payments over $600 required to be | Generally, exempt payees
reported and direct sales over 1 through 5°

$5,000'

Payments made in settlement of
payment card or third party network
transactions

Exempt payees 1 through 4

' See Form 1099-MISC, Miscellaneous Income, and its instructions.

2 However, the following payments made to a corporation and
reportable on Form 1099-MISC are not exempt from backup

withholding: medical and health care payments, attorneys’ fees, gross
proceeds paid to an attorney reportable under section 6045(f), and
payments for services paid by a federal executive agency.

Exemption from FATCA reporting code. The following codes identify
payees that are exempt from reporting under FATCA. These codes
apply to persons submitting this form for accounts maintained outside
of the United States by certain foreign financial institutions. Therefore, if
you are only submitting this form for an account you hold in the United
States, you may leave this field blank. Gonsult with the person
requesting this form if you are uncertain if the financial institution is
subject to these requirements. A requester may indicate that a code is
not required by providing you with a Form W-9 with “Not Applicable” (or
any similar indication) written or printed on the line for a FATCA
exemption code.

A—An organization exempt from tax under section 501(a) or any
individual retirement plan as defined in section 7701(a)(37)

B—The United States or any of its agencies or instrumentalities

C—A state, the District of Columbia, a U.S. commonwealth or
possession, or any of their political subdivisions or instrumentalities

D—A corporation the stock of which is regularly traded on one or
more established securities markets, as described in Regulations
section 1.1472-1(c)(1)(i)

E—A corporation that is a member of the same expanded affiliated
group as a corporation described in Regulations section 1.1472-1(c)(1)(i)

F—A dealer in securities, commodities, or derivative financial
instruments (including notional principal contracts, futures, forwards,
and options) that is registered as such under the laws of the United
States or any state

G —A real estate investment trust

H—A regulated investment company as defined in section 851 or an
entity registered at all times during the tax year under the Investment
Company Act of 1940

I—A common trust fund as defined in section 584(a)

J—A bank as defined in section 581

K—A broker

L—A trust exempt from tax under section 664 or described in section
4947(a)(1)

M—A tax exempt trust under a section 403(b) plan or section 457(g)
plan

Note: You may wish to consult with the financial institution requesting
this form to determine whether the FATCA code and/or exempt payee
code should be completed.

Line 5

Enter your address (number, street, and apartment or suite number).
This is where the requester of this Form W-9 will mail your information
returns. If this address differs from the one the requester already has on
file, write NEW at the top. If a new address is provided, there is still a
chance the old address will be used until the payor changes your
address in their records.

Line 6

Enter your city, state, and ZIP code.

Part I. Taxpayer Identification Number (TIN)

Enter your TIN in the appropriate box. If you are a resident alien and
you do not have and are not eligible to get an SSN, your TIN is your IRS
individual taxpayer identification number (ITIN). Enter it in the social
security number box. If you do not have an ITIN, see How to get a TIN
below.

If you are a sole proprietor and you have an EIN, you may enter either
your SSN or EIN.

If you are a single-member LLC that is disregarded as an entity
separate from its owner, enter the owner’s SSN (or EIN, if the owner has
one). Do not enter the disregarded entity’s EIN. If the LLC is classified as
a corporation or partnership, enter the entity’s EIN.

Note: See What Name and Number To Give the Requester, later, for
further clarification of name and TIN combinations.

How to get a TIN. If you do not have a TIN, apply for one immediately.
To apply for an SSN, get Form SS-5, Application for a Social Security
Card, from your local SSA office or get this form online at
www.SSA.gov. You may also get this form by calling 1-800-772-1213.
Use Form W-7, Application for IRS Individual Taxpayer |dentification
Number, to apply for an ITIN, or Form SS-4, Application for Employer
Identification Number, to apply for an EIN. You can apply for an EIN
online by accessing the IRS website at www.irs.gov/Businesses and
clicking on Employer Identification Number (EIN) under Starting a
Business. Go to www.irs.gov/Forms to view, download, or print Form
W-7 and/or Form SS-4. Or, you can go to www.irs.gov/OrderForms to
place an order and have Form W-7 and/or SS-4 mailed to you within 10
business days.

If you are asked to complete Form W-9 but do not have a TIN, apply
for a TIN and write “Applied For” in the space for the TIN, sign and date
the form, and give it to the requester. For interest and dividend
payments, and certain payments made with respect to readily tradable
instruments, generally you will have 60 days to get a TIN and give it to
the requester before you are subject to backup withholding on
payments. The 60-day rule does not apply to other types of payments.
You will be subject to backup withholding on all such payments until
you provide your TIN to the requester.

Note: Entering “Applied For” means that you have already applied for a
TIN or that you intend to apply for one soon.

Caution: A disregarded U.S. entity that has a foreign owner must use
the appropriate Form W-8.

Part Il. Certification

To establish to the withholding agent that you are a U.S. person, or
resident alien, sign Form W-9. You may be requested to sign by the
withholding agent even if item 1, 4, or 5 below indicates otherwise.

For a joint account, only the person whose TIN is shown in Part |
should sign (when required). In the case of a disregarded entity, the
person identified on line 1 must sign. Exempt payees, see Exempt payee
code, earlier.

Signature requirements. Complete the certification as indicated in
items 1 through 5 below.
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1. Interest, dividend, and barter exchange accounts opened
before 1984 and broker accounts considered active during 1983.
You must give your correct TIN, but you do not have to sign the
certification.

2. Interest, dividend, broker, and barter exchange accounts
opened after 1983 and broker accounts considered inactive during
1983. You must sign the certification or backup withholding will apply. If
you are subject to backup withholding and you are merely providing
your correct TIN to the requester, you must cross out item 2 in the
certification before signing the form.

3. Real estate transactions. You must sign the certification. You may
cross out item 2 of the certification.

4. Other payments. You must give your correct TIN, but you do not
have to sign the certification unless you have been notified that you
have previously given an incorrect TIN. “Other payments” include
payments made in the course of the requester’s trade or business for
rents, royalties, goods (other than bills for merchandise), medical and
health care services (including payments to corporations), payments to
a nonemployee for services, payments made in settlement of payment
card and third party network transactions, payments to certain fishing
boat crew members and fishermen, and gross proceeds paid to
attorneys (including payments to corporations).

5. Mortgage interest paid by you, acquisition or abandonment of
secured property, cancellation of debt, qualified tuition program
payments (under section 529), ABLE accounts {under section 529A),
IRA, Coverdell ESA, Archer MSA or HSA contributions or
distributions, and pension distributions. You must give your correct
TIN, but you do not have to sign the certification.

What Name and Number To Give the Requester

For this type of account: Give name and SSN of:

-

The individual

The actual owner of the account or, if
combined funds, the first individual on

the account’

. Individual

n

. Two or more individuals (joint
account} other than an account
maintained by an FFI

w

. Two or more U.S. persons
(joint account maintained by an FFI}

Each holder of the account

L2
The minor

N

. Custodial account of a minor
(Uniform Gift to Minors Act)

. a. The usual revocable savings trust | The grantor-trustee1
(grantor is also trustee)
b. So-called trust account that is not| The actual owner'
a legal or valid trust under state law

o

o

. Sole proprietorship or disregarded
entity owned by an individual

3
The owner

~

. Grantor trust filing under Optional
Form 1099 Filing Method 1 (see
Regulations section 1.671-4(b)(2)()
A)

The grantor”

For this type of account: Give name and EIN of:

8. Disregarded entity not owned by an | The owner
individual
9. A valid trust, estate, or pension trust | Legal entity“

10. Corporation or LLC electing The corporation
corporate status on Form 8832 or

Form 2553

11. Association, club, religious,
charitable, educational, or other tax-
exempt organization

The organization

The partnership
The broker or nominee

12. Partnership or multi-member LLC
13. A broker or registered nominee

Give name and EIN of:
The public entity

For this type of account:
14. Account with the Department of
Agriculture in the name of a public
entity (such as a state or local
government, school district, or
prison) that receives agricultural
program payments

15. Grantor trust filing under the Form The trust
1041 Filing Method or the Optional
Form 1089 Filing Method 2 (see

Regulations section 1.671-4(b)(2)())(B))

" List first and circle the name of the person whose number you fumish.
If only one person on a joint account has an SSN, that person’s number
must be furnished.

2 Circle the minor’'s name and furnish the minor's SSN.

3 You must show your individual name and you may also enter your
business or DBA name on the “Business name/disregarded entity”
name line. You may use either your SSN or EIN (if you have one), but the
IRS encourages you to use your SSN.

4 List first and circle the name of the trust, estate, or pension trust. (Do
not furnish the TIN of the personal representative or trustee unless the
legal entity itself is not designated in the account title.) Also see Special
rules for partnerships, earlier.

*Note: The grantor also must provide a Form W-9 to trustee of trust.

Note: If no name is circled when more than one name is listed, the
number will be considered to be that of the first name listed.

Secure Your Tax Records From Identity Theft

Identity theft occurs when someone uses your personal information
such as your name, SSN, or other identifying information, without your
permission, to commit fraud or other crimes. An identity thief may use
your SSN to get a job or may file a tax return using your SSN to receive
a refund.

To reduce your risk:
¢ Protect your SSN,
¢ Ensure your employer is protecting your SSN, and
¢ Be careful when choosing a tax preparer.

If your tax records are affected by identity theft and you receive a
notice from the IRS, respond right away to the name and phone number
printed on the IRS notice or letter.

If your tax records are not currently affected by identity theft but you
think you are at risk due to a lost or stolen purse or wallet, questionable
credit card activity or credit report, contact the IRS Identlty Theft Hotline
at 1-800-908-4490 or submit Form 14039.

For more information, see Pub. 5027, Identity Theft Information for
Taxpayers.

Victims of identity theft who are experiencing economic harm or a
systemic problem, or are seeking help in resolving tax problems that
have not been resolved through normal channels, may be eligible for
Taxpayer Advocate Service (TAS) assistance. You can reach TAS by
calling the TAS toll-free case intake line at 1-877-777-4778 or TTY/TDD
1-800-829-4059.

Protect yourself from suspicious emails or phishing schemes.
Phishing is the creation and use of email and websites designed to
mimic legitimate business emails and websites. The most common act
is sending an email to a user falsely claiming to be an established
legitimate enterprise in an attempt to scam the user into surrendering
private information that will be used for identity theft.
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The IRS does not initiate contacts with taxpayers via emails. Also, the
IRS does not request personal detailed information through email or ask
taxpayers for the PIN numbers, passwords, or similar secret access
information for their credit card, bank, or other financial accounts.

If you receive an unsolicited email claiming to be from the IRS,
forward this message to phishing@irs.gov. You may also report misuse
of the IRS name, logo, or other IRS property to the Treasury Inspector
General for Tax Administration (TIGTA) at 1-800-366-4484. You can
forward suspicious emails to the Federal Trade Commission at
spam@uce.gov or report them at www.ftc.gov/complaint. You can

contact the FTC at www.ftc.gov/idtheft or 877-IDTHEFT (877-438-4338).

If you have been the victim of identity theft, see www./dentityTheft.gov
and Pub. 5027.

Visit www.irs.gov/IdentityTheft to learn more about identity theft and
how to reduce your risk.

Privacy Act Notice

Section 6109 of the Internal Revenue Code requires you to provide your
correct TIN to persons (including federal agencies) who are required to
file information returns with the IRS to report interest, dividends, or
certain other income paid to you; mortgage interest you paid; the
acquisition or abandonment of secured property; the cancellation of
debt; or contributions you made to an IRA, Archer MSA, or HSA. The
person collecting this form uses the information on the form to file
information returns with the IRS, reporting the above information.
Routine uses of this information include giving it to the Department of
Justice for civil and criminal litigation and to cities, states, the District of
Columbia, and U.S. commonwealths and possessions for use in
administering their laws. The information also may be disclosed to other
countries under a treaty, to federal and state agencies to enforce civil
and criminal laws, or to federal law enforcement and intelligence
agencies to combat terrorism. You must provide your TIN whether or
not you are required to file a tax return. Under section 34086, payers
must generally withhold a percentage of taxable interest, dividend, and
certain other payments to a payee who does not give a TIN to the payer.
Certain penalties may also apply for providing false or fraudulent
information.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

The Board of Directors

Adventure Works of DeKalb County, Inc.
DeKalb, Illinois

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Adventure Works of DeKalb
County, Inc. (a non-profit organization), which comprise the statements of financial position
as of June 30, 2022 and 2021, and the related statements of activities, functional expenses,
and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Adventure Works of DeKalb County, Inc. as of June 30,
2022 and 2021, and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the years then ended in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report.
We are required to be independent of Adventure Works of DeKalb County, Inc. and to meet
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating
to our audits. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America, and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant
to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are
conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about
Adventure Works of DeKalb County’s ability to continue as a going concern within one year
after the date that the financial statements are available to be issued.

50 W. Douglas Street, Suite 300 6815 Weaver Road, Suite 300 1809 10t» Street
Freeport, Illinois 61032 Rockford, Illinois 61114 Monroe, Wisconsin 53566
(815) 235-3157 (815) 316-2375 (608) 325-5035

Fax (815) 235-3158 Fax (815) 316-2389 Fax (608) 328-2843






Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance
but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with generally accepted auditing standards will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements,
including omissions, are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that,
individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable
user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, we:

e Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the
audit.

o Identity and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Adventure Works of DeKalb County,
Inc.’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

e Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the
aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Adventure Works of DeKalb County,
Inc.’s ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain
internal control related matters that we identified during the audit.

Rockford, Illinois
October 19, 2022






ADVENTURE WORKS OF DEKALB COUNTY, INC.

Statements of Financial Position
June 30, 2022 and 2021

Assets

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable, less allowance for doubtful
accounts of $2,500 as of June 30,
2022 and 2021, respectively
Contributions receivable — United Way Agencies
Prepaid expenses
Total current assets
Property and equipment:
Land and land improvements
Building and building improvements
Vehicles and trailers
Less accumulated depreciation
Property and equipment, net

Liabilities and Net Assets
Current liabilities:
Current portion of notes payable
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Accrued payroll
Deferred revenue
Total current liabilities
Payroll Protection Program (PPP) advance
Long-term liability — notes payable
Total liabilities
Net assets:

Without donor restrictions
With donor restrictions

Total net assets
Total liabilities and net assets

See accompanying notes to financial statements

2022 2021
236,803 354,218
55,205 11,743
5,834 4,208
1,820 5,649
299,662 375,818
191,950 185,050
130,430 130,430
23,585 23,585
(51,506) (44,389)
294,459 294,676
594,121 670,494
9,143 5,181
- 744
12,321 17,755
7,212 31,595
_ 3,000
28,676 58,275
- 77,412
331,513 344,859
360,189 480,546
228,098 181,641
5,834 8,307
233,932 189,948
594,121 670,494







816°681 LOE'8 179181 €6'€€T  pE8'S 860°8CC $
¥89°9C  989°CS 866°€61 806681 LOES 179181
(9gL'9s)  (6LEYY) (LseTn) ¥86'Ch (£L¥'0) LSH'O¥
095°609 = 095609 YTI6LS - $TI6LS
90T‘s¢ - 907'S¢ L91°8€ - L91°8€
91t°€0T - 91t°€0C €I8°L1T - €I8°LIT
8€6°0LE - 8€6°0LE 124 X T4 - PPI°€TE
¥78°TSS  (6LEPH) €0T°L6S 801°'c29  (€L¥'D) 185'579
- (6v1°19) 6v1°19 - (€7€'60) £2€°6T
81 - 81 L - L
00001 - 00001 - = -
PELLS - PEI'LS U¥'LL - TIFLL
091 - 091°C yTe'e - ZAA
LESTE - LESTE - - -
0T8°L91 - 0Z78°L91 LSHSET -~ LSH'SET
LTY'181 - LTV 181 €19°661 - £19°661
0SL‘9 0SL9 - 0ST11 000°L 0ST'v
8L6V6 020°01 856'13 SP1°961 058°61 S6T9LI $
120¢ SUOTIOLYSIY SUoNOLNSY 720 SUOTIOLSIY  SUONOMISIY
jeloL ouo yup  IJouo(q Moyl [e10L Jouo(g ynp Jouo(g 1noyim

1T0T PU® ZZOT “0€ 2unf papug sIesa ) sy 1o

SAIANDY JO SIUSWIRIEIS

*ONI ‘ALNNOD TVNAJ 40 SYOM TININIAAAY

sjusuIa)e)s jeroueulj o} sajou SuiKueduiodde 2og

1824 JO pua Je $33sSe JON
Ieaf Jo Suruuidaq 1e s3asse JoN
S}OSSE 30U U (9582109P) 95BAIOU]

sasuadxa [ej0]
Suisterpuny
[e15ua8 pue juswadeuey
$901A13S weIgo1]
:sasuadxg

yodduns pue anusasx [ejoL

:SUOTIOLIISAI U0} PASea[al $J9sSe JoN
2WIOoU JS2IOJU]
ssauaAISI0] 2oueApe 1Al
SSOUAISIO] 9oUBADE Jdd
SUOTINGUIIU0D Punj-uf

K12anoadsa gz pue 0§ Jo

$1S02 39211 JO 32U ‘sjuaAs Jussres-punyg
SjueRIS JUIWUIIAOD
$39] JUST|D
sa10uady Aep\ pPaIU[) — SUOHNQLIUOYD)
SUOBNQLIIN0)

:pioddns pue onuaAdy






ADVENTURE WORKS OF DEKALB COUNTY, INC.

Salaries and wages

Intern stipend

Payroll taxes and benefits
Advertising and promotion
Contract services
Depreciation

Equipment and supplies
[nsurance

Interest

Memberships and dues
Miscellaneous

Nutrition

Office expense

Outcome and client tracking
Professional development
Professional fees

Property taxes

Repairs and maintenance
Telephone and internet
Travel

Utilities

Statement of Functional Expenses
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

Program Management 2022
Services and General Fundraising Totals
§ 239,302 104,943 6,984 351,229
- 288 - 288
28,955 17,591 760 47,306
- 2,281 - 2,281
- 10,600 5,715 16,315
2,604 4,513 - 7,117
9,009 461 - 9,470
6,991 4,302 204 11,497
5,774 7,975 - 13,749
170 3,994 - 4,164
6,403 1,947 - 8,350
922 -~ - 922
957 9,487 - 10,444
5,661 - - 5,661
5,162 5,481 - 10,643
663 27,590 24,200 52,453
2,452 1,658 - 4,110
4,460 10,183 - 14,643
2,153 1,909 41 4,103
- - 263 263
1,506 2,610 - 4,116

$ 323,144 217,813 38,167 579,124

See accompanying notes to financial statements






ADVENTURE WORKS OF DEKALB COUNTY, INC.

Salaries and wages

Payroll taxes and benefits
Advertising and promotion
Client services

Contract services
Depreciation

Equipment and supplies
Insurance

Interest

Memberships and dues
Miscellaneous

Nutrition

Office expense

Outcome and client tracking
Professional development
Professional fees

Property taxes

Repairs and maintenance
Telephone and internet
Utilities

Statement of Functional Expenses
For the Year Ended June 30, 2021

Program Management 2021
Services and General Fundraising Totals
$ 263,502 119,999 25,269 408,770
22,175 10,357 2,186 34,718
- - 2,106 2,106
1,883 - - 1,883
5,264 - 4,875 10,139
2,133 3,699 - 5,832
6,770 505 - 7,275
5,957 3,890 572 10,419
5,127 3,810 - 8,937
2,277 2,021 - 4,298
3,225 2,601 44 5,870
1,804 - - 1,804
60 3,840 - 3,900
3,117 - - 3,117
2,294 11,614 - 13,908
123 26,539 - 26,662
2,541 1,717 - 4,258
39,090 8,626 - 47,716
2,191 1,762 154 4,107
1,405 2,436 - 3,841
$ 370,938 203,416 35,206 609,560

See accompanying notes to financial statements






ADVENTURE WORKS OF DEKALB COUNTY, INC.
Statements of Cash Flows
For the Years Ended June 30, 2022 and 2021

2022 2021

Cash flows from operating activities:
Increase (decrease) in net assets $ 43,984 (56,736)
Adjustment to reconcile change in net assets to net cash flows
of operating activities:

Depreciation 7,117 5,832
Increase (decrease) in cash flow due to changes in:
Accounts receivable (43,462) 11,692
Contributions receivable — United Way Agencies (1,626) 92
Prepaid expenses 3,829 (1,895)
PPP advance forgiveness (77,412) (57,134)
EIDL advance forgiveness - (10,000)
Accounts payable (744) (8,114)
Accrued expenses (5,434) 9,228
Accrued payroll (24,383) 15,155
Deferred revenue (3,000) 3,000
Net cash flows from operating activities (101,131) (88,880)

Cash flows from investing activities—
Purchase of fixed assets (6,900) (10,800)

Cash flows from financing activities:

Proceeds from refundable PPP advance - 77,412
Payments on mortgage payable (9,384) (5,765)
Net cash flows from financing activities (9,384) 71,647
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (117,415) (28,033)
Cash and cash equivalents:
Beginning of year 354,218 382,251
End of year $ 236,803 354,218
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information
Cash payments for interest $ 13,749 8,937

See accompanying notes to financial statements






ADVENTURE WORKS OF DEKALB COUNTY, INC.
Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2022 and 2021

(1) Nature of the Organization and Significant Accounting Policies

(a) Nature of Business

Adventure Works of DeKalb County, Inc. (Adventure Works) is a not-for-profit
organization founded in 2010 to provide interactive counseling to youth ages 6-18.
Adventure Works provides individual, family, and group counseling through
adventure. Adventure Works services are a proven alternative to talk therapy and
primarily occur outdoors, utilizing the natural environment to engage clients
behaviorally, emotionally and physically.

(b) Basis of Accounting & Presentation

The financial statements of Adventure Works have been prepared on the accrual basis
of accounting in which revenue is recognized when earned and expenses are recognized
when incurred.

Adventure Works reports information regarding its financial position and activities
according to two classes of net assets: without donor restrictions and with donor
restrictions.

(¢c) Promises to Give

Contributions are recognized when the donor makes a promise to give to Adventure
Works that is, in substance, unconditional. Conditional promises are recognized as
contributions when conditions have been met. Contributions restricted by the donor are
reported as increases in net assets without donor restrictions if the restrictions are met
in the fiscal year in which the contributions are recognized. All other donor-restricted
contributions are reported as increases in net assets with donor restrictions depending
on the nature of the restrictions. When a restriction is met, net assets with donor
restrictions are reclassified to net assets without donor restrictions.

(d) Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash includes cash on hand and deposit accounts with a financial institution. Adventure
Works maintains its cash in bank deposit accounts which, at times, may exceed
federally insured limits. Adventure Works was below the federal deposit insurance
coverage at June 30, 2022. Adventure Works has not experienced losses in such
accounts and believes it is not exposed to any significant credit risk on cash.

For purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, Adventure Works considers all highly
liquid investments with an initial maturity of three months or less to be cash
equivalents.






ADVENTURE WORKS OF DEKALB COUNTY, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements

(e) Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are stated at the amount management expects to collect from
outstanding balances. Management provides for probable uncollectible amounts
through a provision for bad debt expense and an adjustment to a valuation allowance
based on its assessment of the current status of individual accounts. Balances which
remain outstanding after management has used reasonable collection efforts are written
off to the valuation allowance.

(H Property and Equipment

Purchased property and equipment is stated at cost. Adventure Works capitalizes
expenditures over $2,500 for land, buildings, improvements and equipment; donated
property is capitalized at fair market value when received.

Depreciation is computed on the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of
the assets.

(g¢) Donated Services and Materials

Donated materials are reflected as contributions at their estimated value at date of
receipt. Donated services are recognized as revenue if the services create or enhance
non-financial assets or require specialized skills, are provided by individuals possessing
those skills, and typically need to be purchased if not provided by donation. Contributed
services that do not meet the above criteria are not recognized as revenues and expenses
and are not reported in the accompanying financial statements.

(h) Use of Estimates

Management uses estimates and assumptions in preparing the financial statements.
Those estimates and assumptions affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities,
the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities, and the reported revenues and
expenses. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
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ADVENTURE WORKS OF DEKALB COUNTY, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements

Net Assets Classification

Adventure Works is required to report information regarding its financial position and
activities according to two classes of net assets: net assets with donor restrictions and
net assets without donor restrictions.

Contributions received are recorded as with or without donor restrictions depending on
the existence or nature of any donor restrictions.

Net assets with donor restrictions represent contributions that are restricted for time and
program services as of June 30, 2022 and 2021.

Income Taxes

Adventure Works is exempt from federal income taxes under Internal Revenue Code
Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code and applicable state law. The
accounting standards on accounting for uncertainty in income taxes address the
determination of whether tax benefits claimed or expected to be claimed on a tax return
should be recorded in the financial statements. Under that guidance, Adventure Works
may recognize the tax benefit from an uncertain tax position only if it is more likely
than not that the tax position will be sustained on examination by taxing authorities
based on the technical merits of the position. Examples of tax positions include the tax-
exempt status of Adventure Works and various positions related to the potential sources
of unrelated business taxable income (UBIT). The tax benefits recognized in the
financial statements from tax positions are measured based on the largest benefit that
has a greater than 50% likelihood of being realized upon ultimate settlement. There
were no unrecognized tax benefits identified or recorded as liabilities for fiscal year
ending June 30, 2022.

Adventure Works files its information returns (Form 990 Series) in the U.S. federal
jurisdiction and the office of the state’s attorney general for the State of Illinois.
Adventure Works information returns are generally no longer subject to examination
by the Internal Revenue Service for years before June 30, 2018.

(k) Functional Expense Allocation

The financial statements report certain categories of expenses that are attributed to
more than one program service or supporting activity. Costs are charged on a direct
functional basis whenever practical. When direct charges cannot be determined, the
costs are allocated on the basis of the estimated proportional use of the service provided
or resources consumed.

10






ADVENTURE WORKS OF DEKALB COUNTY, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements

(1) Advertising Costs

It is the policy of Adventure Works to expense advertising costs as incurred. Adventure
Works expensed $2,281 and $2,106 of advertising costs for the years ended June 30,
2022 and 2021, respectively.

(2) Major Source of Revenue

For the fiscal years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, approximately 15% and 16% Adventure
Works’ revenue without donor restrictions was received from the DeKalb County Mental
Health Board. A significant reduction in the level of this support, if this were to occur,
could have a significant effect on Adventure Works’ programs and activities.

(3) Related Party Transactions

No related party transactions were noted in the year ending June 30, 2022 or June 30, 2021.

(4) Mortgage and Notes Payable

In December 2019, Adventure Works consolidated their existing debt into one mortgage
payable to a bank when they purchased a property. The new loan was issued for the amount
of $220,183. The loan is payable in monthly installments of $1,232 including interest at
4.5% with a final balloon payment of $194,912 due in December 2024. The mortgage
payable is secured by Adventure Works’ building and assignments of rents. The mortgage
loan was refinanced in July 2022 with a new lender with a fixed rate of 5.35% including
monthly principal and interest payments of $1,562 with a single, final payment of the entire
unpaid balance of principal and interest due in July 2037. Total interest paid on the loan
was $9,678 and $8,593 for the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

During 2020, Adventure Works received an Economic Injury Disaster Loan (EIDL)
advance for $10,000, Payroll Protection Program (PPP) advance for $57,134 and a Small
Business administration (SBA) loan for $150,000. During fiscal year 2021, the EIDL and
PPP advances were forgiven in full. The SBA loan is included in notes payable. The SBA
loan requires monthly payments of principal and interest of $641 which are deferred until
24 months from the date of the loan; however, Adventure Works began making payments
beginning in June 2021. The SBA loan matures in May 2050 and bears an interest rate of
2.75%. The loan is secured by all tangible and intangible personal property. Total interest
paid on the SBA loan was $4,071 and $344 for the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021,
respectively.

During 2021, Adventure Works received a second round PPP advance of $77,412. This
PPP advance was fully forgiven in July 2021 and is recorded as PPP advance forgiveness
in the Statement of Activities.

11






ADVENTURE WORKS OF DEKALB COUNTY, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements

Future debt obligations at June 30, 2022 for the mortgage payables are due as follows:

Fiscal year ending June 30, Total
2023 $ 9,143
2024 9,475
2025 187,384
2026 3,989
Thereafter 130,665
$ 340,656

(5) Net Assets

Components of net assets without donor restrictions as of June 30, 2022 and 2021
respectively, are as follows:

2022 2021
Without donor restrictions — Undesignated $ 228,098 181,641

Components of net assets with donor restrictions as of June 30, 2022 and 2021 respectively,
are as follows:

2022 2021
Time restrictions — United Way $ 5,834 4,208
Program restrictions:
Little Adventurers - 2,311
Other - 1,788
— 4,099
$ 5,834 8,307

12






ADVENTURE WORKS OF DEKALB COUNTY, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements

(6) Liquidity and Availability of Financial Assets

The following table reflects Adventure Works’ financial assets as of June 30, 2022 and
2021, reduced by amounts that are not available to meet general expenditures within one
year of the statement of assets, liabilities, and net assets date because of contractual
restrictions or donor restrictions.

2022 2021
Cash and cash equivalents $ 236,803 354218
Accounts receivable 55,205 11,743
Contributions receivables 5,834 4,208
Total financial assets 297,842 370,169
Donor restricted time and program requirements (5,834) (8,307)
Financial assets available to meet cash needs
for general expenditures within one year $ 292,008 361,862
(7) Subsequent Events

Subsequent events are events or transactions that occur after the statement of financial
position date but before financial statements are issued or are available to be issued. These
events and transactions either provide additional evidence about conditions that existed at
the date of the statement of financial position, including the estimates inherent in the
process of preparing financial statements (that is, recognized subsequent events), or
provide evidence about conditions that did not exist at the date of the statement of financial
position but arose after that date (that is, non-recognized subsequent events).

Adventure Works has evaluated subsequent events through October 19, 2022 which was
the date that these financial statements were available for issuance. No significant events
occurred subsequent to fiscal year-end aside from the refinancing of the mortgage loan
which is discussed in Note 4 above.
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164 East Lincoln Highway
DeKalb, llinois 40115

opoorunily - mnovation 815.748.2000 » cityofdekalb.com

FY 2023 HUMAN SERVICES FUNDING
APPLICATION
Twelve Months Funding 1/1/23 to 12/31/23

APPLICATION MUST BE RECEIVED NO LATER THAN 5:00 P.M. ON NOVEMBER 7, 2022.
INCOMPLETE APPLICATIONS AND/OR LATE SUBMISSIONS WILL NOT BE CONSIDERED.

Barb City Manor, Inc.

680 Haish Blvd.

Helen Maurer, President
Maureen Gerrity, Administrator

Agency Name:

Mailing Address:

Agency Director:

Contact Person:

815-756-8444 .. address: Migbcm@yahoo.com

Telephone No.:

Name of Person Responsible for Completing Quarterly Report: Maureen Gerrity
815-756-8444 . .i Address: Mtgbcm@yahoo.com

Telephone No.:

Program Description: RE€Sident Assistance Program providing
monthly rent subsidies for senior citizens in financial
need living at Barb City Manor Retirement Home.

Twelve Month Program Budget: $ 45’000-00

Amount of Funding Requested: $ 3:600-00
8 %

% of Total Program Budget:

20

Total Estimated Number of Program Participants:

Total Estimated Number of DeKalb Residents to be Served: 20

Estimated DeKalb Residents as % of Total Participants to be Served: 100 %

Page 1 of 3






The following documents must accompany the application:
1. A current listing of the agency’s Board of Directors and terms.

2. The current annual operating budget for the agency and a detailed budget for the
program requesting funding.

3. A detailed narrative explaining the program to be funded, its potential impact, and
anticipated outcomes to be achieved. Be specific about the population to be served and the
benefits derived from your services. Include any descriptive materials regarding the history
and mission of the agency that would help augment the application.

4. Documentation of the agency’s 501(c)(3) status.
5. Completed W-9 Form.

6. Copy of agency’s most recent financial audit. For small agencies that do not perform an
annual audit, financial statements certified by a professional accountant can be submitted.

The City of DeKalb retains the right to request any and all additional information from the

agency it may determine necessary in making funding decisions. This may include articles
of incorporation or any other information deemed appropriate.

The undersigned hereby certifies the information contained in this application is true and
accurate to the best of their knowledge and belief.

Name of Authorized Signer: Maureen Gerrity

Title: Administrator

Signature: %WW QLW{%’/

Date: 11-2-2022

Please submit the application using one of the following methods:

Via regular mail to be received no later than 5:00 p.m. on November 7, 2022
to:

City of DeKalb

Attention: Joanne Rouse
164 East Lincoln Highway
DeKalb, lllinois 60115

Via email dated no later than 5:00 p.m. on November 7, 2022 to:
joanne.rouse@cityofdekalb.com

City of DeKalb FY2023 Human Services Funding Application Page 2 of 3
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HUMAN SERVICES AGREEMENT
BARB CITY MANOR

This agreement made thi%d; day of LQMN DD, between the City of

DeKalb, a municipal corporation of the State of lllinoid, hereinafter referred to as the "City"
and Barb City Manor, hereinafter referred to as "Grantee," WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS the City desires that Grantee provide certain services to the citizens of
DeKalb and Grantee has the capacity to provide such services; and,

WHEREAS the Grantee acknowledges that it is the City's intention to purchase said
services for the citizens of the City of DeKalb under the following guidelines:

1.

First priority shall be given to those services which will help meet basic emergency
needs such as food, clothing, and shelter. Second priority shall be given to those
services which are preventative in nature and promote the highest degree of self-
support, self-care, and self-help. Third priority shall be given to those services which
seek to enhance the quality of life of persons whose basic needs are already met.
Priority shall also be given to services which primarily benefit low- and moderate-
income residents. The services provided by the Grantee are consistent with these
guidelines as explained on the attached Exhibit A.

Services shall address specific documented needs. The services provided by the
Grantee address the specific, documented needs as explained on the attached
Exhibit A.

Services shall also receive financial support from other community sources. Grantee
has attached hereto a copy of its budget for the period that this Agreement covers
as Exhibit B, which budget establishes that the Grantee receives at least

92% of its funding from third party sources. A copy of Grantee's audit or year-end
financial statement from the most recent complete year of operations is attached
hereto as ExhibitC.

City funds are used only to support those services directly benefiting DeKalb
residents. The City will not subsidize the cost of services to non-residents. Grantee
has certified compliance with this requirement by signing the attached Exhibit A.

Administrative costs for these services are to be kept to a minimum. Grantee has
identified the allocation between administrative costs and program costs as
explained on the attached Exhibit A.

These services must be coordinated with other agencies when feasible. Grantee has
outlined how services are coordinated with other agencies as explained on the
attached Exhibit A.



10.

11.

The City will not fund, but may augment, services which are the responsibility of
another public agency or funding source. Grantee has identified any areas where
the City's funds are being utilized to augment third party responsibilities as explained
on the attached ExhibitA.

City funds are to be used primarily to match or leverage other private or public funds.
Grantee has explained how matching or leveraged funds are being sought or
obtained as explained on the attached Exhibit A.

The City's intent is to contract for specific services and monitor their effectiveness.
Grantee has a) identified the metrics by which its performance is to be evaluated on
an annual basis; b) identified those third parties that provide any review or evaluation
of Grantee's efforts; and c) explained its clearly defined performance evaluation
process, as explained on the attached Exhibit A.

Grantee has clearly identified and delineated where any elected or appointed official
of the City or any City employee is involved in its programming or receives any direct
or indirect benefit, any compensation, or any pecuniary benefit of any form by virtue
of Grantee's program, or the City funding provided hereunder, as explained on the
attached ExhibitA.

Grantee has outlined the process by which funds are held by Grantee as explained
on the attached Exhibit A, and all such funds are held by the Grantee in a Grantee-
specific checking account with the financial institution identified therein (and not in
any personal checking account), unless otherwise indicated therein.

WHEREAS the parties hereto understand and agree that the Grantee is an
independent contractor and not an employee of the City; now,

In consideration of the agreements set forth and other good and valuable
considerations, the parties agree as follows:

1.

Term. The term of this agreement shall be from January 1, 2023 to December 31,
2023. The City or Grantee may terminate this Agreement at any time, upon the
provision of thirty (30) days written notice. The City may terminate this agreement at
any time based upon the occurrence of a breach of this Agreement, upon the
provision of 48 hours written notice.

Scope of Service. The Grantee shall provide services in accordance with the
service plan provided in the original application, a copy of which is attached hereto
as Exhibit A.

Hold Harmless. The Grantee hereby agrees to indemnify, defend, and hold the City
and its officers, employees, contractors, and representatives harmless from and
against any and all such costs, expenses, damages, liabilities, losses, and claims



which may arise out of or are related to the services provided by the Grantee under
this agreement, or which relate to this Agreement, or the funding provided herein.
The Grantee agrees and acknowledges that the City is not in any way responsible
for the conduct or provision of Grantee's programs or services, and is not responsible
for the review, supervision or management of Grantee's personnel, volunteers,
participants, programming, or services.

Payment. The City agrees to pay the Grantee the sum of Three Thousand six hundred
and No/1 00 Dollars ($m&9_)_for services rendered under thls agreement. _axmgm

will r in f Linstall nd will
MMMEMMMMMMIMM

event that this Agreement is terminated, no further payments shall be due or payable to
Grantee. In the event that the City Council determines that the City's financial condition
does not support making a payment otherwise due under this Agreement, the City may
suspend, delay, or otherwise cancel payments due hereunder.

Access to Financial Records. The Grantee agrees to allow the City access to
review any and all of Grantee's financial records as may be determined appropriate
to ensure the accountability of monies disbursed by the City. The Grantee also
agrees to provide the City with a copy of its operating budget and its audit or year-end
financial statement for each fiscal year or portion thereof in which the Grantee
receives funding under this (or successor) agreements.

Performance Reporting. The Grantee agrees to send the City a report following
every three months of services identifying the number of City of DeKalb citizens that
have been provided services under the terms of this Agreement. The Grantee further
agrees to send the City a copy of all documentation required to demonstrate its
performance, or which is identified as a performance-evaluation tool in Exhibit A.
The Grantee further agrees that it shall provide a verbal report to the City at a
regularly scheduled meeting of the City Council as may be requested by the City from
time to time.

Quarterly reports shall be provided to the City on or before the 10th day of the
following months:

1st Quarter - April

2nd Quarter - July

34 Quarter - October
4th Quarter - January

Compliance with Laws. The Grantee expressly covenants and agrees that it shall
comply with all applicable laws, including those laws applicable to the use of public
funding to the extent that such laws are applicable to programs funded in whole or
in part by the City of DeKalb. The Grantee expressly covenants that it shall not
discriminate against any person or organization on the basis of any legally



recoghized protected classification, including but not limited to race, gender, religion,
ethnic or cultural background, sexual preference, or other legally recognized,
protected classification, in the provision of its services or use of funding provided
hereunder.

8. Use of Funds. The Grantee shall only utilize funds made available under this
agreement for the provision of services consistent with this agreement and shall not
use such funding for any other purpose, nor for the construction of any real property
or improvement to real property, nor for any purpose which constitutes "Public
Works" for purposes of the lllinois Prevailing Wage Act.

9. Grantee's Organization. Grantee is organized in the format as described in Exhibit
A. For the term of this Agreement, Grantee shall take such actions as shall be
required to maintain that form of organization. Grantee shall provide the City with
notice of the meetings of its governing board or board of directors, and the City shall
have the opportunity to attend such meetings as an ex officio member of such
governing board; the City shall also have the right to review the minutes of all such
meetings.

10. Grantee-Specific Obligations. Grantee shall comply with the listing of Grantee-
Specific Obligations attached hereto as Exhibit D

11. Certification: Grantee hereby certifies that it shall comply with the contents of this
Agreement and the terms of its Application and certifies that the contents of this
Agreement and the Application are true, accurate, and correct. The recitals to this
Agreement are expressly incorporated herein by reference.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Grantee has caused this agreement to be signed,
sealed, and attested to by its Chairman of the Board of Directors and Executive
Director, on the - day of , and said City has caused the
same to be signed, sealed, and attested to by |ts Mayor and City Clerk or Executive
Assistant of the City of DeKalb as of the date first mentioned in this Agreement.

BARB CITY MANOR CITY OF DEKALB, ILLINOIS
Weler, M awrsy C:Q-ﬂ-, DC-;
Board Chairman Cohen Barnes, Mayor

ATTEST: EST:
Ma e Mot E&%agsﬁ“
Mg

Ad e Strato,



Exhibit A: Funding Application



Exhibit B: Current Year's Budget



Exhibit C: Most Recent Completed Fiscal Year's Audit or Year-End
Financial Statement






Exhibit D: Grantee-Specific Obligations

Grantee agrees and acknowledges that it shall comply with the following obligations,
which shall be considered to be an integral component of the Agreement:

Barb City Manor (Grantee) will facilitate a rent subsidy program for low-income senior
citizens in financial need to allow them to live in safety and security without burdening
them financially. All recipients of the City-funded subsidy will be required to apply for
rental assistance through the Housing Authority of the County of DeKalb.

Barb City Manor is licensed a Boarding House in the City. Apartments are rented on a
month-to-month basis. The agency will provide a rent subsidy to a total of 20 low-income
individuals over the course of the contract. Of this number, 100% of recipients will be
residents of the City of DeKalb. Grantee will track the total number of individuals served
by the program and will include an accounting of individuals who are residents of the City
to document that City of DeKalb Human Services Funding is used only to support direct
services to DeKalb residents. Residents who receive the subsidy must be low-income as
defined by HUD and must apply for rental assistance with the Housing Authority of the
County of DeKalb. The subsidy will be used to assist residents while waiting for Housing
Authority assistance. City funds are interim assistance and cannot be used for ongoing
rent payments. Grantee will report revenue from other sources in support of this program
to document that the City is not the sole funder for the costs for this assistance. Reports
will be submitted on a Quarterly basis in order to receive payment of grant funds.
Grantee can claim reimburse for documented costs up to $900 per quarter.






Term
5/17-6/24
7/19-6/25
2/18-6/23
2/16-6/24
7/19-6/23
4/21-6/23
1/22-6/24
4/21-6/25
4/22-6/25
2/22-6-23
7/22-6/24

Barb City Manor, Inc. Board of Directors

Board Members
Maurer, Helen-President
Noreiko, Kate-Vice Pres
Maakestad, Dennis-Sec
Russell, Sue- Treasurer
Coulter, Christi
Espinosa, Adrian
Gallagher, Melissa
Holloway, Brianna
Krupp, Christie
Overhaug, Rick

Roozee, Eric

DeKalb, IL 60115
DeKalb, IL 60115
DeKalb.IL 60115
DeKalb, IL 60115
Waterman, IL 60556
Sycamore, IL 60178
DeKalb, IL 60115
DeKalb, IL 60115
DeKalb. IL 60115
DeKalb, IL 60115
Sycamore, IL 60178

11/3/2022






Barb City Manor

Revenue - Operations

4000-02
4012-02
4015-03
4100-02

4200-04
4205-02
4210-02
4900-00

Res. Rent
Furn.

Cable

Other Rents

Subtotal

Gift shop
Vend/Fd sales
Misc. Inc.

Grant Income

Sub. total

Operations Income Total

Transfer To (From)
Operations

Total

23 Budget

1,264,465.00
1,800.00
17,250.00
8,000.00
1,291,515.00
4,800.00
250.00
5,000.00
10,000.00

20.050.00

1.311,565.00
212,932.00

1.524,497.00

pg. 1






Barb City Manor

Disbursements - Operations

Personnel

5000-02
5005-02
5010-02
5015-02
5020-02
5025-02
5030-02

Subtotal

5035-02
5040-02
5045-02
5050-02
5055-02
5056-02

Subtotal

Commodities

6000-02
6005-02
6010-02
6015-02
6020-02
6025-02
6030-02
6035-02
6040-02

Admin.

Office

Recep.

Maint.

FT Food Serv.
PT Food Serv.
Hskpg

Workman's Comp.

Sul
Pension
Medical
FICA
Misc

Personnel Subtot

Fund Drive
Office Supp.
Kitchen Supp.
Food

Rm. Supplies
Maint. Supp.
Hsk. Supplies
Activities
Misc. Comm.

Commodities
Subtotal

23 Budget

163,215.00
48,319.00
97,657.00

130,874.00

161,052.00

183,000.00
56,909.00

841.026.00

16,000.00
500.00
26,500.00
42,557.00
64,338.49
2,000.00

151.895.49

992,921.49

23 Budget

1,250.00
8,800.00
15,000.00
128,700.00
500.00
2,000.00
13,800.00
2,000.00
250.00

172,300.00

p. 2






Barb City Manor

Disbursements - Operations

Contractual

7000-02
7005-02
7010-02
7015-02
7020-02
7021-02
7025-02
7030-02
7035-02
7036-02
7037-02
7038-02
7039-02
7104-02
7100-02
7105-02
7110-02
71156-02
7120-02
7125-02
7130-02
7135-02
7155-02

Operations Total
Capital

9005-02
9010-02
9015-02
9025-02
9028-02

Expenditure Total

AC R&M
Elevator R&M
Boiler R&M
Fd. Serv. R&M
Office R&M
Equip. R&M
Grounds R&M
Bld. R&M
Phone

Cable

Gas
Electricity
Water
Refuse
Postage

Gift Shop
Advertising
Subscript.
Travel/Conf.
Prof. Service
BId. Ins.
Public Relat.

Misc. Contract.

Contractual
Sub Total

Office Equip.
Kitchen/Dining
Res. Room
Redecoration
New Constr

Capital
Sub Total

23 Budget

3,000.00
16,000.00
15,000.00

7,500.00

100.00

3,500.00
14,000.00
90,000.00

5,800.00
28,850.00
34,000.00
55,500.00
20,000.00

5,475.00

1,500.00

2,500.00
20,000.00

2,400.00

500.00
15,000.00
13,500.00

2,000.00

1,000.00

357,125.00

1,522.346.49

500.00
250.00
1,000.00
200.00
200.00

2,150.00

p.3






Barb City Manor Resident Assistance Program Budget
Total Program Budget: $45,000 per year; $3,750 per month.

13 Residents assisted per month.
Average monthly subsidy: $288

Amount requested from City of DeKalb FY2023 Human Services Fund: $3,600

Barb City Manor has 62 studio and one-bedroom apartments. The average monthly rate is
$1,729. This rate includes: 3 meals daily; water, electricity, heat, and air conditioning; weekly
housekeeping and linen service; maintenance; activities; and staff on duty 24/7. Barb City
Manor does not charge an entrance fee and apartments are rented on a month-to-month basis.
FY 2023 Human Services Funding dollars would be used to assist Barb City Manor residents
that have applied for, but not yet received, Housing Choice Vouchers from the Housing
Authority of the County of DeKalb.






Barb City Manor Resident Assistance Program Narrative

Barb City Manor’s Resident Assistance Program helps residents of low income with the monthly
cost of room and board. Barb City Manor (BCM) is a not-for-profit retirement home providing
affordable housing, three meals daily, utilities including water, gas, electricity, and refuse

service, weekly housekeeping and linen service, maintenance, and 24-hour staffing. A variety of
social, recreational, and educational activities are also included. Annual mandatory minimum
wage increases and inflation have raised the cost to provide services to our residents. In 2022,
we saw a significant rise in the number of seniors needing financial assistance, and the amount of
the subsidies requested, to help them afford the monthly room and board at Barb City Manor.
Currently, 17 residents are receiving subsidies from the Resident Assistance Program, with an
average grant of $324 per month.

Senior citizens living at Barb City Manor are often able to avoid or delay placement in long term
care facilities. They have a greater degree of independence, and they are not in nursing homes or
supportive living facilities on Public Aid (Medicaid). Most BCM residents “age in place”.
Assistance with bathing, personal care, and medications is available through agencies that
provide these services in the community. BCM residents are allowed to use canes, walkers, and
wheelchairs. They benefit from a balanced diet, opportunities to socialize, housekeeping service,
24-hour security, and the independence that living at Barb City Manor fosters.

An FY 2023 Human Services Funding grant of $3,600 from the City of DeKalb will help Barb
City Manor continue to assist DeKalb senior citizens of low income, allowing them to live in
safety and security without burdening them financially. BCM residents are primarily widows or
widowers aged 80 and over, living solely on Social Security. FY 2023 Human Services Funding
dollars would be used to assist Barb City Manor residents that have applied for, but not yet
received, Housing Choice Vouchers from the Housing Authority of the County of DeKalb. The
outcome used to measure the effectiveness of the Resident Assistance Program is the number of
residents receiving financial assistance that continue to reside at Barb City Manor.






Barb City Manor Resident Assistance Program Narrative

Barb City Manor’s Resident Assistance Program helps residents of low income with the monthly
cost of room and board. Barb City Manor (BCM) is a not-for-profit retirement home providing
affordable housing, three meals daily, utilities including water, gas, electricity, and refuse
service, weekly housekeeping and linen service, maintenance, and 24-hour staffing. A variety of
social, recreational, and educational activities are also included. Annual mandatory minimum
wage increases and inflation have raised the cost to provide services to our residents. In 2022,
we saw a significant rise in the number of seniors needing financial assistance, and the amount of
the subsidies requested, to help them afford the monthly room and board at Barb City Manor.
Currently, 17 residents are receiving subsidies from the Resident Assistance Program, with an
average grant of $324 per month.

Senior citizens living at Barb City Manor are often able to avoid or delay placement in long term
care facilities. They have a greater degree of independence, and they are not in nursing homes or
supportive living facilities on Public Aid (Medicaid). Most BCM residents “age in place”.
Assistance with bathing, personal care, and medications is available through agencies that
provide these services in the community. BCM residents are allowed to use canes, walkers, and
wheelchairs. They benefit from a balanced diet, opportunities to socialize, housekeeping service,
24-hour security, and the independence that living at Barb City Manor fosters.

An FY 2023 Human Services Funding grant of $3,600 from the City of DeKalb will help Barb
City Manor continue to assist DeKalb senior citizens of low income, allowing them to live in
safety and security without burdening them financially. BCM residents are primarily widows or
widowers aged 80 and over, living solely on Social Security. The outcome used to measure the
effectiveness of the Resident Assistance Program is the number of residents receiving financial
assistance that continue to reside at Barb City Manor.






BARB CITY MANOR MISSION STATEMENT AND ORGANIZATIONAL HISTORY

Barb City Manor (BCM) is a not-for-profit retirement home for seniors aged 62 and over. Our
mission is to serve low- to moderate-income seniors in safety and comfort. Barb City Manor is
an affordable option for senior citizens that are no longer willing or able to maintain a home or
live alone.

Barb City Manor Retirement Home opened in the DeKalb Public Hospital building in 1979. It
was governed by the DeKalb Housing Commission which was created by the City of DeKalb to
establish a retirement home for low- to moderate-income seniors in this historic building. Funds
that had been earmarked for the Public Hospital remained with the building. Those funds were
used to finance the renovations for the retirement home.

In 1993, the 501(c)(3) non-profit Barb City Manor, Inc., was formed. A new volunteer board of
directors took over governance of the retirement home and the DeKalb Housing Commission
was dissolved. A 20-year Service Agreement between the City of DeKalb and Barb City Manor,
Inc., spelled out the responsibilities of the parties. The Service Agreement was renewed for an
additional 6 years on June 30, 2013. A 10-year Service Agreement was signed July 25, 2019.

Barb City Manor is licensed as a Boarding House by the City of DeKalb. Apartments are rented
on a month-to-month basis. BCM has 62 studio and one-bedroom apartments and serves 75-80
senior citizens per year. Residents with annual income below $33,900 can apply for HUD rent
assistance through The Housing Authority of the County of DeKalb. Barb City Manor has
established a designated fund to assist residents that are waiting for HUD funding. DeKalb
County Senior Tax Levy Funds, DeKalb Township grants, and DCCF Promise grants are also
used to assist residents with their rent. Currently 17 residents are receiving rent assistance from
HUD and/or BCM’s Resident Assistance Fund.

BCM offers many amenities that are included in the monthly rent: 3 nutritious meals daily
served in our spacious Dining Room, weekly housekeeping & linen service, and all utilities
except for phone, cable TV & internet. A staff member is on duty 24/7 and a variety of
recreational, social, and educational programs are offered. As residents age, they can arrange for
personal care or home health services through local agencies. The auxiliary, Friends of Barb
City Manor, provides financial assistance for resident activities through its fundraising efforts,
including its on-site ReSale Shop. The services that BCM provides allow seniors to remain
active and engaged in a home-like environment and help prevent premature nursing home
placement.






INTERNAL REVENUE SERVICE DEPARTHMIZNT OF THE TREASURY
DISTRICT DIRECTOR
P 0 BOX A-3290 DPN 22-2
CHICAGOy IL 40490
Employer Identification Numbers:

Date: 3634602051,
NOV 09 1993 Case Number:
2638292075
BARE CITY WANOR INC Contact ferson:
630 HAISH BOUILEVARD MRG. R. COOLEY
DiEKaLEs IL 40115 Contact Telephone Number:

(312} 836~1278
Dur Lettsr Dated:
May 11, 1989
Addendum Appliese
Ny AY

Dizar Applicant:

This modifies our lebter of the above date in which we stated that you
would be treated as an organization that is nat a private foundation unti! the
expiration of your advance raling period.

Your exempt staktus under sectio: 501¢a) of the Internal Revenue Code as an
organizat:ion described in section 53£(c)(8) is still in effect. Based on the
information you submitteds we have datermined that you are mot a private
foundation within the meaning of section 509(a} of the Code because you are an
organizatiion of the Lype described in section 509¢a) (1) and 170Cb} (13 (A (Vi) .

Srantors and confributors may iz ly on this determination uniess the
Internal Revenue Service pubiishes w:ubice to the contrary. However: if you
bose your section 509(al (i} statuss - grantor ar contributor may not refy on
this defermination if he or she was in part responsible fory or was anare ofy
the act or failure to acts or the sutstantial or material change on the part of
the osrganization that resulted in your loss of such statuss or if he or she
azquired knowledge that the Internai Revenue Service had given notice that you
would no longer be classified as a s=-tion 50F(a) (1) organization.

If we have indicated in the heasing of Lhis letter that an addendum
appliesy the addendum enclosed is -arn integral part of this letter.

Because this letter could help ca2solve any quesitions about your private
foundation statuse please keep it iw your pernanent records.

If you have any questionsy ples.2 contact the person whose name and
talephone number are shown above.
Sincer2ly your ',
. N

Maril& W. Day
Distirict Director

Letter 1060 (D0/CB)
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Department of the Treasury—intemal Revenue Service OMB No. 1545-0056

//Fo,m 872-C Consent Fixing Period of Limitation Upon Botes 33189
Assessment of Tax Under Section 4940 of the Yo be used with Form
Internal Revenue Code 1023. Submit in
(See Form 1023 instructions for Part IV, line 3.) diiplicate.

(Rev, March 1986)

Under section 6501(c)(4) of the Internal Revenue Code, and as part of a request filed with Form 1023 that the

organization named below be treated as a publicly supported organization under section 170(b)(1)(A)(vi) or section
509(a)(2) during an advance ruling period,

Barb City Manor, Inc.

""""""""""""""""" Exact legal name of organization) ey
(Bxact legal name of organization) District Director
- and the

of Internal Revenue
..680_.Haish _Baulevard....... DeKalb,-IL..60115

- (Number, street, city or town, state, ana ZIP code) /

Consent and agree that the period for assessing tax (imposed under section 4940 of the Code) for any of the 5 tax years
in the advance ruling period will extend 8 years, 4 months, and 15 days beyond the end of the first tax year.

However, if a notice of deficiency in tax for any of these years is sent to the organization before the period expires, then

the time for making an assessment will be further extended by the number of days the assessment is prohibited, plus
60 days.

Ending date of first tax year June 30, 1989

------------------------------------

Name of organization Date

é’/q,??

Barb City Manor, Inc.
Otficer or trustee h /amng authority to sign

Slgnature b\——— ,/( v Qg @W .

/}A /ﬁ#u@x@ \q_\ MAY_—Q 1989
N e 03 0

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see page 1 of the Form 1023 i@on&? Manager 7201 ’ TVN'







Internal Revenue Service Department of the Treasury
District Director

s

P D OSOX A-3290  DPN 22-Z
CHICALOy IL  &8ARG
Dataz Emp ioyer Identification Number:
MAY 11 1989 B6~3602051
Contact fFersons
P. J. HATARAKDSs R,
i BE DITY MAMOR THC fontact Te!ephonp Numb&rg
LS80 HALSH BOULEVARD {312} Bes-12

lLfAL“v 1L &0115

ficoounting Perind Ending:
Junn 30

Foundation Btatus Classifications
SO {a) {2}

Advance Rufing Period Begins:
Jansary 27y 1989

fidvance Rufing Perind Endss
Juns Sy 1993

Addendum Applies:
iy

Bear Appficant:

Basad on intormabion supplisds *nd assuming your operations will be as
shated in your application for vecogaition of oxampbions e have determined you
are oxempd rom Faderat! incoms ftax under section FQ‘(&B af the Iabteraal
Revenue Dods as an organization desoribsd in sechios 5GL(g) (2.

PBocause you are 4 nesiy oreated orgaenizafions we ars nobt now making a
final determinatinon of vour foundation shates under section H50%{(sr »f the Code
Howevers we have deterwined that you can reasonably be sxpected 4o he a
publicty supporbted organization described in section 5OV(al (d).

Aceordingiy: you will be freated as a publicly supported organizations
and not as a private Youndation: during an advance ruling period. This
advance ruling pariod begins and ends on the daftes shown above.

Hithin 90 davs a¥ter the ead of your advance ruling period., vou musi
suhmit £ us information nesded to determine whether you have wmef the require-
ments of the applicabis support fest during the advance ruling period. If you
eskablish that you haws been a publisly supparded organizations you uill be
classified a3 a section B0?(a3 (1) ar B50?{a) (2} organization as long as you con-
Linge to mecd the reguircments of the applicables support test. If you do nok
meet The public suppord requirsments during the advance ruling periods wyou will
be classified as a private foundation Tor fubure pericds. Alsos if you are
ctassitisd as a private foundations you wilf he freated as a private foundation
from the date of wour incepfion for purposes of sections BOYV{d and 474C.

Brantors and conbribulors may raly on She determination that you are aof 3
private foundation watil P0 days after the end of your advance rutling period.
If you submi®t the required information within the 20 days» grauwntors and contri-
bufors may conbinue to eraly on She advance debermination until the Servine
makes a final dabermi